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BOARD’s REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors are pleased to present the Twentieth Annual Report of FIDEL SOFTECH LIMTED along with the Audited Financial 
Statement for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.

1.  Highlights of Financial Performance
	 The	Company	has	recorded	the	following	financial	performance,	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2025:

 (Amount in ` Cr)

  Revenue Growth:	The	company	experienced	a	significant	revenue	increase	from	`40.09 crore in FY23–24 to `55.04  
		 crore	in	FY24–25,	reflecting	a	robust	demand	for	its	services	and	successful	market	expansion.

  EBITDA Improvement: EBITDA rose from `8.24 crore to `12.66	crore,	indicating	enhanced	operational	efficiency	and	 
		 effective	cost	management.

  Profit Before Tax (PBT): PBT increased from `8.02 crore to `12.50	crore,	with	 the	margin	 improving	 from	20%	 to	 
		 22.72%,	showcasing	the	company's	ability	to	generate	higher	profits	from	its	operations.

  Profit After Tax (PAT): PAT grew from `6.06 crore to `9.33	crore,	with	the	margin	rising	from	15%	to	16.96%,	reflecting	 
		 effective	tax	management	and	improved	profitability.

  Earnings Per Share (EPS): EPS increased from `4.41 to `6.79,	indicating	enhanced	shareholder	value	and	consistent	 
		 profitability.

	 Your	 Company	 has	 demonstrated	 exceptional	 financial	 growth	 in	 FY24–25	 compared	 to	 the	 previous	 fiscal	 year.	 The	
significant	 increases	 in	 revenue,	 EBITDA,	 PBT,	 PAT,	 and	 EPS	 underscore	 the	 company's	 effective	 strategic	 initiatives,	
operational	efficiency,	and	strong	market	positioning.

2.  SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

 Key Developments in FY2024–25

 	 Revenue	 Growth:	 Achieved	 a	 significant	 revenue	 increase	 from	 `40.09 crore in FY2023–24 to `55.04 crore in  
		 FY	2024–25,	reflecting	robust	demand	and	market	expansion.

 	 Operational	Excellence:	Maintained	a	 consistent	 profit	margin,	with	PBT	margin	at	 22%	and	PAT	margin	at	 16.5%,	 
		 demonstrating	effective	cost	management	and	operational	efficiency.

 	 Strategic	 Initiatives:	 Continued	 focus	 on	 AI/ML-driven	 localization	 services,	 multilingual	 prompt	 engineering,	 and	 
		 expansion	into	new	markets,	including	Malaysia.

 	 Technological	Advancements:	Implemented	the	Translation	Management	System	(TMS)	Plunet	to	optimize	operations	 
		 and	enhance	service	delivery.

 	 Human	Resources:	Focused	on	strategic	hiring	and	employee	satisfaction	to	support	growth	and	maintain	a	functional	 
  team.

 	 Industry	Recognition:	Received	multiple	awards	for	innovative	and	niche	services	in	the	global	market.		

 Outlook for FY2025–26

	 Looking	ahead,	Fidel	Softech	aims	to	sustain	its	growth	trajectory	by:

 	 Leveraging	AI	and	localization	technologies	to	drive	new	business	opportunities.

Particulars FY25
 (Standalone)

FY25
(Consolidated)

FY24
(Standalone)

Revenue 54.80 55.04 40.09
EBITDA 12.57 12.66 8.24
Profit	Before	Tax 12.41 12.50 8.02
PBT	% 22.65% 22.72% 20%
Profit	After	Tax 9.26 9.33 6.06
PAT	% 16.90% 16.96% 15%
EPS 6.74 6.79 4.41
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 	 Expanding	market	presence	through	strategic	partnerships	and	geographic	diversification.

 	 Focusing	on	operational	excellence	and	process	optimization	to	maintain	profitability.

 	 Investing	in	employee	development	and	satisfaction	to	foster	a	high-performing	team.

	 With	a	solid	foundation	and	strategic	initiatives	in	place,	Fidel	Softech	is	poised	for	continued	success	in	the	coming	fiscal	 
 year.

3.  RESERVES 

	 The	Board	of	Directors	have	not	proposed	 to	 transfer	any	amount	 to	any	Reserve.	Therefore,	entire	profits	of	`9.33 cr. 
(before	distribution	of	dividend)	earned	during	the	financial	year	2024-25	have	been	retained	in	profit	and	loss	account.

4.  DIVIDEND

	 Your	directors	are	pleased	to	recommend	a	dividend	of	`2	per	share	for	the	current	financial	year.		

5.  STATEMENT OF DEVIATION(S) OR VARIATION(S) IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION 32 OF SEBI LISTING 
OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS (LODR) REGULATION, 2015

	 In	accordance	with	the	offer	document	of	the	Initial	Public	Offer,	the	Company	had	estimated	utilization	of	`455.46	Lakhs	
towards	Funding	Working	Capital	requirements	of	the	Company	and	`163.30	Lakhs	towards	General	Corporate	Purposes	
for	the	financial	year	ended	2024-25.	During	the	year	the	Company	has	utilized	`149.57	Lakhs	towards	Funding	Working	
Capital	requirements	and	`92.89	Lakhs	towards	General	Corporate	Purposes.

	 Actual	 utilization	 since	 inception	was	 `836.89	 Lakhs	 in	 total	 and	 `376.37	 Lakhs	 still	 remained	 unutilized.	There	was	 a	
shortfall	in	utilization	of	funds	as	the	Company	had	undertaken	a	conservative	approach	of	spending	the	funds	raised.	The	
Company	believes	that	spending	has	to	be	made	on	the	right	opportunities	and	at	the	right	time,	rather	than	spending	to	meet	
targets. It was a strategic call to delay the spending.

6.   ANNUAL RETURN

 As per the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2020 dated 28th August, 2020, of the 
Companies	Act,	2013	(the	Act),	the	Annual	Return	of	the	Company	is	uploaded	on	the	website	of	the	Company	at	https://
www.fidelsoftech.com/other-disclosures/	

7.  DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

 As	on	March	31,	2025,	the	Company	has	6	Directors	with	an	optimum	Combination	of	Executive	and	Non-Executive	including	
Women	Director.	 	The	detailed	profile	of	 the	Board	of	Directors	 is	available	on	 the	website	of	 the	Company	at	 this	 link:	 
https://www.fidelsoftech.com/board-of-director/	.	The	constitution	of	the	Board	Committees	is	given	elsewhere	in	this	report.

 The following changes have been made to the Board of Directors of the Company during the year: 

 a.	 Mr.	 Shyamak	 Kulkarni	 (DIN	 09552445)	 is	 liable	 for	 retirement	 by	 rotation	 and,	 being	 eligible,	 offers	 himself	 for	 
		 re-appointment	at	the	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting

 b. Re-appointment of Managing Director:

	 		 Mrs.	 Prachi	 Kulkarni	 (DIN:	 03618459),	 was	 re-appointed	 as	 the	Managing	 Director	 of	 the	 Company	 by	 the	 Board	 
		 of	Directors	for	a	further	period	of	five	years	with	effect	from	1st April, 2025.

	 		 The	 approval	 of	 the	 members	 for	 her	 re-appointment	 as	 Managing	 Director	 and	 the	 remuneration	 payable	 to	 her	 
		 was	 duly	 obtained	 at	 the	Extra-Ordinary	General	Meeting	 of	 the	Company	 held	 on	 14th April, 2025, in accordance  
		 with	 the	 applicable	 provisions	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013,	 read	 with	 the	 relevant	 Rules	 framed	 thereunder	 and	 
  Schedule V to the said Act.

  c. Re-appointment of Independent Directors:

	 		 Based	on	the	recommendations	of	 the	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee,	Dr.	Girish	Desai	(DIN:	08328701)	 
		 and	 Mr.	 Pradeep	 Dharane	 (DIN:	 02313403),	 Independent	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company,	 have	 been	 re-appointed	 for	 
		 a	second	term	of	two	years,	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.

 d. Cessation of Directorship:

	 		 Dr.	 Apurva	 Joshi	 ceased	 to	 be	 an	 Independent	 Director	 of	 the	 Company	 upon	 completion	 of	 her	 first	 term	 of	 3	 
  years on 14th April 2025. 

   The	Board	places	on	record	its	sincere	appreciation	and	gratitude	for	the	valuable	contributions	made	by	her	during	her	 
  tenure.
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e. Appointment of Additional Director (Independent):

  Upon	 the	 recommendation	 of	 the	 Nomination	 and	 Remuneration	 Committee,	 Mrs.	 Prajakta	 Kotasthane	 (DIN:	 
	00713512)	 has	 been	 appointed	 as	 an	 Additional	 Director	 in	 the	 category	 of	 Independent	 Director	 of	 the	 Company	 
	with	effect	from	14th April 2025.

	 	Based	 on	 representations	 received	 from	 the	 Directors,	 none	 of	 the	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 are	 disqualified	 as	 
	per	 section	 164(2)	 of	 the	Companies	Act,	 2013	 and	 rules	made	 thereunder	 or	 any	 other	 provisions	 of	 the	Companies	 
	Act,	 2013.	The	Directors	 have	 also	made	 necessary	 disclosures	 as	 required	 under	 provisions	 of	 section	 184(1)	 of	 the	 
	Companies	Act,	 2013.	All	 members	 of	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors	 and	 senior	 management	 personnel	 affirmed	 compliance	 
	with	the	Company’s	Code	of	Conduct	policy	for	the	financial	year	2024-2025.

	 	All	 Independent	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 have	 given	 a	 declaration	 under	 Section	 149(7)	 of	 the	 Act,	 that	 they	 
 meet the criteria laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act. The Board is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors  
	of	 the	 Company	 possess	 the	 requisite	 qualifications,	 experience,	 expertise	 including	 proficiency	 in	 their	 respective	 
	fields	of	study.	

	 	Further,	 their	 names	 are	 included	 in	 the	 data	 bank	 of	 Independent	 Directors	 maintained	 with	 the	 Indian	 Institute	 of	 
	Corporate	Affairs	 in	 terms	of	Section	150	of	 the	Act	 read	with	Rule	6	of	 the	Companies	 (Appointment	and	Qualification	 
 of Directors) Rules, 2014.

  In compliance with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 a meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was  
	held	during	the	year.	The	evaluation	process	for	the	Board	of	Directors	pertaining	to	the	Financial	Year	2024-25	has	been	 
	carried	out	and	the	same	was	shared	with	the	Chairman	of	the	Company	and	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee	 
 of the Board. 

8.  FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

 The	Board	of	Directors	has	carried	out	an	annual	evaluation	of	 its	own	performance,	board	committees,	and	 individual	
directors	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	the	Act	and	SEBI	Listing	Regulations.	The	performance	of	the	board	was	evaluated	
by	the	Board	after	seeking	input	from	all	the	directors	on	the	basis	of	criteria	such	as	the	board	composition	and	structure,	
effectiveness	of	board	processes,	information	and	functioning,	etc.	The	performance	of	the	committees	was	evaluated	by	
the	Board	after	seeking	input	from	the	committee	members	on	the	basis	of	criteria	such	as	the	composition	of	committees,	
effectiveness	of	committee	meetings,	etc.	The	above	criteria	are	broadly	based	on	the	Guidance	Note	on	Board	Evaluation	
issued	by	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	on	January	5,	2017.	

 In	 a	 separate	meeting	 of	 Independent	Directors,	 performance	of	 non-independent	 directors,	 the	Board	 as	 a	whole	 and	
Chairman	of	the	Company	was	evaluated,	taking	into	account	the	views	of	executive	directors	and	non-executive	directors.	

 The	Board	and	the	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee	reviewed	the	performance	of	individual	directors	based	on	
criteria	such	as	the	contribution	of	the	individual	director	to	the	board	and	committee	meetings	like	preparedness	on	the	issues	
to	be	discussed,	meaningful	and	constructive	contribution	and	inputs	in	meetings,	etc.	At	the	board	meeting	that	followed	
the	meeting	of	the	independent	directors	and	meeting	of	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee,	the	performance	of	the	
Board,	its	committees,	and	individual	directors	was	also	discussed.	Performance	evaluation	of	independent	directors	was	
done	by	the	entire	Board,	excluding	the	independent	director	being	evaluated.

9.  MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 The composition of Board of Directors is as follows-

	 1.	 Mr.	Sunil	Kulkarni,	Chairman	and	Executive	Director

	 2.	 Mrs.	Prachi	Kulkarni,	Managing	Director

	 3.	 Mr.	Shyamak	Kulkarni,	Non-Executive	Director

 4. Mr. Pradeep Dharane, Independent Director

	 5.	 Dr.	Girish	Desai,	Independent	Director

	 6.	 Dr.	Apurva	Joshi,	Independent	Director
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10.  COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 		 Your	Directors	have	constituted	the	Audit	committee	in	accordance	with	Section	177	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	read	 
		 with	 rule	6	of	Companies	 (Meetings	of	Board	and	 its	Powers)	Rules,	 2014	on	April	 15,	 2022.	The	members	of	 the	 
		 Committee	are	as	follows:

	 		 1.	 Dr.	Apurva		Joshi,	Independent	Director,	Chairperson	of	the	Committee

	 		 2.	 Mrs.	Prachi		Kulkarni,	Managing	Director

	 		 3.	 Mr.	Girish		Desai,	Independent	Director

	 		 Total	of	7	(Seven)	meetings	of	the	Committee	were	held	during	the	period	ended	March	31,	2025;	detailed	as	under:

	 The	Board	Meeting	attended	by	each	Director	is	as	follows	–	

 Total	of	7	(Seven)	Board	Meetings	were	held	during	the	financial	year	ended	March	31	2025,	detailed	as	under.	The	maximum	
gap	between	any	two	Board	Meetings	was	less	than	120	days.

Sr. No Meeting dates
1 May 8, 2024
2 May 23, 2024
3 July	30,	2024
4 September	14,	2024
5 November	7,	2024
6 January	30,	2025
7 March 15, 2025

Sr. No Name of Directors No. of Board Meeting 
attended

1 Mr.	Sunil	Kulkarni 7
2 Mrs.	Prachi	Kulkarni 7
3 Mr.	Shyamak	Kulkarni 6
4 Mr. Pradeep Dharane 5
5 Dr.	Girish	Desai	 7
6 Dr.	Apurva	Joshi 7

Sr. No Meeting dates
1 May 8, 2024
2 May 23, 2024
3 July	30,	2024
4 September	14,	2024
5 November	7,	2024
6 January	30,	2025
7 March 15, 2025

	 					The	Committee	meeting	attended	by	members	are	as	follows:

Names of Members No of meetings attended
Dr.	Apurva	Joshi 7
Mrs.	Prachi	Kulkarni 7
Dr.	Girish	Desai 7
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   The Audit Committee is Reconstituted wef 14th April 2025 as under – 

   1. Mr. Pradeep Dharane, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee

	 		 2.	 Dr.	Girish	Desai,	Independent	Director-	Member	of	the	Committee

	 		 3.	 Mr.	Sunil	Kulkarni,	Executive	Director	-	Member	of	the	Committee

	 		 Further,	there	were	no	such	instances	where	the	recommendation	of	the	Audit	Committee	were	not	accepted	by	the	Board	 
		 during	the	financial	year	under	review.

 II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

	 		 Your	directors	have	constituted	a	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee	as	required	under	the	provisions	of	Section	 
		 178	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.	The	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee	consists	of	following	members:

	 		 1.	 Dr.	Girish	Desai,	Independent	Director,	Chairman	of	the	Committee

	 		 2.	 Dr.	Apurva	Joshi,	Independent	Director

   3. Pradeep Dharane, Independent Director

	 		 Total	of	2	(Two)	meetings	of	the	Committee	were	held	during	the	period	ended	March	31,2025;	detailed	as	under:

	 				 The	Committee	meeting	attended	by	members	are	as	follows:

Sr. No Meeting dates
1 May 23, 2024
2 March 15, 2025

Names of Members No.  of meetings attended
Dr.	Girish	Desai 2
Dr.	Apurva	Joshi 2
Mr. Pradeep Dharane 1

	 		 Mr.	Shamak	Kulkarni,	Non	 -Executive	Director	has	been	appointed	as	a	member	of	Nomination	and	Remuneration	 
		 Committee	with	effect	from	10th April, 2025. 

	 		 Policy	on	Nomination	and	Remuneration	for	the	Board	and	Senior	Officials	is	available	on	the	website	of	the	Company	 
		 at	https://www.fidelsoftech.com/corporate-policies/	

   The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is Reconstituted wef 14th April 2025 as under – 

	 		 1.	 Dr.	Girish	Desai,	Independent	Director-	Chairman	of	the	Committee

	 		 2.	 Mr.	Pradeep	Dharane,	Independent	Director-	Member	of	the	Committee

	 		 3.	 Mrs.	Prajakta	Kotasthane	Independent	Director-	Member	of	the	Committee

	 		 4.	 Mr.	Shyamak	Kulkarni,	Non-Executive	Director	-	Member	of	the	Committee

 III. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 		 Your	Board	has	constituted	Stakeholders	Relationship	Committee	under	the	provisions	of	Section	178(5)	of	Companies	 
		 Act,	2013	on	April	15,	2022.	The	Committee	consists	of	following	members:

   1. Mr. Pradeep Dharane, Independent Director, Chairman of the Committee

	 		 2.	 Mrs.	Prachi	Kulkarni,	Managing	Director

	 		 3.	 Dr.	Apurva	Joshi,	Independent	Director

   The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is Reconstituted wef 14th April 2025 as under – 

	 		 1.	 Mrs.	Prajakta	Kotasthane	Independent	Director-	Chairman	of	the	Committee

	 		 2.	 Mr.	Pradeep	Dharane,	Independent	Director-	Member	of	the	Committee

	 		 3.	 Mrs.	Prachi	Kulkarni,	Managing	Director-	Member	of	the	Committee



10

20th Annual Report 

	 	No	Meeting	held	during	the	year	under	report.	

	 This	Committee	is	primarily	responsible	for	reviewing	all	matters	connected	with	the	Company’s	transfer/	transmission	of	
securities	and	redressal	of	shareholder’s	/	investor’s	/	security	holder’s	complaints.

11.  DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

	 In	September	2024,	 the	company	established	a	wholly	owned	subsidiary,	FidelSoft	 Inc.,	based	 in	Austin,	USA."	Further	
details are mentioned in the form AOC-1 attached as  Annexure I.

 PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES AND THEIR CONTRIBUTION 
TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

	 FidelSoft	Inc.,	a	wholly	owned	subsidiary	of	the	Company,	was	incorporated	in	September	2024	and	has	recently	commenced	
its	business	operations.	The	financials	have	been	consolidated,	and	the	subsidiary	has	already	contributed	approximately	
0.62%	to	the	overall	turnover.	The	Company	remains	optimistic	about	the	growth	potential	of	the	subsidiary	and	is	confident	
of	its	positive	contribution	to	the	topline	in	the	current	financial	year.

12.  INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND RIKS MANAGEMENT

	 The	Company	has	in	place	adequate	internal	financial	control	commensurate	with	its	size	and	operations.	During	the	year,	
no	reportable	material	weakness	was	noticed.

	 The	Company	has	an	annual	Internal	Audit	plan	in	place	specifying	the	scope	of	the	work,	independence,	and	responsibility	
of the Internal Auditors. The periodic Internal Audit reports are reported to the Audit Committee along with Management 
response.

	 The	Company	 has	 developed	 and	 implemented	 a	 risk	management	 framework	which	 identifies	major	 risks	which	may	
threaten	the	existence	of	the	Company.	A	risk	mitigation	process	and	measures	have	also	been	formulated.

13.  DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

	 Pursuant	to	Section	134(3)	(c)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company	to	the	best	of	its	knowledge	
and	ability	confirm	that:-

	 1.	 In	the	preparation	of	the	annual	accounts,	the	applicable	accounting	standards	had	been	followed	along	with	proper	 
		 explanation	relating	to	material	departures,	if	any;	

	 2.	 they	have	selected	such	accounting	policies	and	applied	them	consistently	and	made	judgments	and	estimates	that	are	 
		 reasonable	and	prudent	so	as	to	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company	as	at	March	31,2025	and	 
		 of	the	profit	of	the	Company	for	that	period.

	 3.	 they	have	 taken	proper	and	sufficient	care	 for	 the	maintenance	of	adequate	accounting	 records	 in	accordance	with	 
		 the	provisions	of	the	Act	for	safeguarding	the	assets	of	the	Company	and	for	preventing	and	detecting	fraud	and	other	 
  irregularities.

	 4.	 they	have	prepared	the	annual	accounts	on	a	‘going	concern’	basis.

	 5.	 they	have	laid	down	internal	financial	controls	to	be	followed	by	the	Company	and	such	internal	financial	controls	are	 
		 adequate	and	operating	effectively.

	 6.	 they	have	devised	proper	systems	to	ensure	compliance	with	the	provisions	of	all	applicable	laws	and	that	such	systems	 
		 are	adequate	and	operating	effectively.

14.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT :

	 Pursuant	to	Regulation	34	(2)	(e)	read	with	Schedule	V	of	SEBI	(Listing	Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirement)	Regulations,	
2015,	Management	Discussion	&	Analysis	Report	for	the	year	under	review	forms	the	part	of	this	report	and	is	marked	as	
Annexure II, to this report.

15.  WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM

	 The	Company	has	in	place	a	Whistle	Blower	Policy	establishing	a	vigil	mechanism,	to	provide	a	formal	mechanism	to	the	
Directors,	employees,	and	others	to	report	their	concerns	about	unethical	behavior,	actual	or	suspected	fraud	or	violation	
of	the	Company’s	Code	of	Conduct	or	ethics	policy.	The	Policy	provides	for	adequate	safeguards	against	victimization	of	
employees	who	avail	such	mechanism	and	provide	for	direct	access	to	the	Chairman	of	the	Audit	Committee.	Whistle	Blower	
policy	is	available	on	the	website	of	the	Company	at	this	link	https://www.fidelsoftech.com/corporate-policies/	

	 There	were	no	complaints	received	under	this	mechanism	during	the	Financial	Year	under	review.



FIDEL SOFTECH LIMITED
LangTech & Consulting

11

16.  DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3) (e)

	 The	Board	has	adopted	a	Board	Diversity	Policy	which	sets	the	criterion	for	appointment	as	well	as	continuance	of	Directors,	
at	 the	 time	of	 re-appointment	of	 director	 in	 the	Company.	As	per	 the	policy,	 the	Board	has	an	optimum	combination	of	
members	with	an	appropriate	balance	of	skill,	experience,	background,	gender	and	other	qualities	of	directors	required	for	
the	effective	functioning	of	the	Board.

	 The	Nomination	&	Remuneration	committee	recommends	remuneration	of	the	Directors,	subject	to	overall	limits	set	under	
the	Act,	as	outlined	in	the	Remuneration	Policy.	The	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Policy	is	available	on	the	website	of	the	
Company	at	https://www.fidelsoftech.com/corporate-policies/	

17.  AUDITORS

 a. Statutory Auditors-

	 		 The	Statutory	Auditors,	Kirtane	&	Pandit	LLP	Firm	Registration	No.	105215W/W100057,	were	appointed	to	hold	office	 
		 for	five	years	from	April	1,	2021.

	 		 The	Unmodified	opinion	of	Auditors	on	the	Financial	Statement	of	the	Company	for	Financial	Year	2024-25	is	enclosed	 
		 along	with	this	report.	There	were	no	cases	of	fraud	detected	and	reported	by	the	Auditor	under	Section	143(12)	during	 
		 the	financial	year.	

  b. Secretarial Auditors-

	 		 The	Company	has	appointed	CS	Abhijit	Dakhawe	(FCS	No.	6126,	CP	No.	4474)	as	Secretarial	Auditor	of	the	Company	 
		 in	the	Board	Meeting	held	on	7th	November,	2024	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	Section	204	of	the	Act	read	with	 
		 the	Companies	(Appointment	and	Remuneration	of	Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014	for	the	Financial	Year	2024-25.

   The report of the Secretarial Auditor MR-3	for	the	financial	year	2024-25	is	enclosed	as	Annexure ‘III’ to this Board’s  
		 Report,	which	is	self-explanatory.	The	Secretarial	Audit	Report		has	following	remarks	–

  1. During the year under audit, the company submitted form FC-GPR in respect of allotment to overseas investor  
  made in year 2007, the same was rejected by Reserve Bank of India / AD Bank i.e. Bank of India for want of correct  
  FIRC and KYC. Further, Bank of India vide its letter dated 7th December 2024 has expressed its inability to issue  
  original FIRC and KYC as transaction being too old. As informed to me by the management, the Company has  
  decided to approach Reserve Bank of India for compounding the delay in the said matter. 

   Management Response – 

	 		 The	 Company	 acknowledges	 the	 audit	 observation	 regarding	 the	 delayed	 submission	 of	 Form	 FC-GPR	 for	 the	 
		 allotment	 made	 to	 an	 overseas	 investor	 in	 the	 year	 2007.	 Due	 to	 the	 considerable	 time	 elapsed	 since	 the	 
		 transaction,	 the	 Authorised	 Dealer	 (AD)	 Bank—Bank	 of	 India—has	 expressed	 its	 inability	 to	 issue	 the	 original	 
		 FIRC	 and	 KYC	 documents,	 which	 are	 essential	 for	 processing	 the	 form.	 Consequently,	 the	 submission	 was	 
		 rejected	by	the	Reserve	Bank	of	India	(RBI).

	 		 Considering	 the	 circumstances	 and	 as	 per	 current	 regulatory	 requirements,	 the	 Company	 has	 decided	 to	 initiate	 
		 compounding	 proceedings	 with	 the	 RBI	 to	 regularize	 the	 delay	 in	 compliance.	 Necessary	 documentation	 and	 
		 applications	are	in	the	process	of	being	prepared	for	submission	to	the	Foreign	Exchange	Department	of	the	RBI.

	 		 The	Company	 remains	committed	 to	 full	 compliance	with	all	 applicable	FEMA	 regulations	and	will	 take	appropriate	 
		 measures	to	prevent	the	recurrence	of	such	delays	in	the	future.

	 	2.	 During	 the	 course	 of	 our	 Audit,	 we	 have	 observed	 that	 there	 are	 occasional	 delays	 in	 reporting	 certain	 required	 
		 disclosures	on	NSE	Emerge	platform	as	required	under	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligations	 
		 and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	

   Management Response: We	acknowledge	the	observation	regarding	occasional	delays	in	reporting	certain	required	 
		 disclosures	on	the	NSE	Emerge	platform.	The	Company	remains	committed	to	complying	with	all	regulatory	requirements	 
		 under	the	SEBI	(Listing	Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.

	 		 We	have	since	taken	corrective	steps	to	strengthen	our	internal	compliance	framework,	including	the	implementation	of	 
		 a	compliance	calendar,	enhanced	training	for	relevant	personnel,	and	periodic	 internal	reviews	to	ensure	timely	and	 
  accurate disclosures.

	 		 Going	 forward,	we	 are	 confident	 that	 these	measures	will	 help	 us	 ensure	 full	 compliance	with	 all	 applicable	 listing	 
  regulations in a timely manner. 
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 C.  Internal Auditors 

	 		 The	Company	has	appointed	Milind	Sangoram	and	Co,	Chartered	Accountants,	Pune	 (Membership	No	151555)	as	 
		 the	Internal	Auditors	of	the	Company	under	the	provisions	of	section	138	of	the	Act,	for	conducting	the	internal	audit	of	 
		 the	Company	for	the	financial	year	2024-25.

18.  LOANS AND INVESTMENT 

	 Details	of	Loans,	Guarantees	and	Investments	covered	under	the	provisions	of	Section	186	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	are	
given	in	the	notes	to	the	Financial	Statements.

	 During	the	year,	the	Company	incorporated	a	wholly-owned	subsidiary	in	the	United	States	in	September	2024	with	an	initial	
investment	of	USD	50,000.

	 There	were	no	new	Loans	made	by	the	Company	in	the	current	Financial	Year.	

	 The	details	of	all	loans,	guarantees	and	Investment	are	available	in	the	Register	maintained	under	Section	186	of	the	Act,	
which	is	available	for	inspection	during	business	hours	on	all	working	days	(except	Saturday	and	Sunday).

19.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

 All related party transactions (RPT) that were entered into during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025 were at an 
arm’s	length	basis	and	were	in	the	ordinary	course	of	business.	Therefore,	the	provisions	of	Section	188	of	the	Act	were	not	
applicable.

	 In	compliance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Act,	each	transaction	as	entered	by	the	Company	with	its	related	parties	is	placed	
before	the	Audit	Committee.	Prior	omnibus	approval	of	the	Audit	Committee	is	obtained	on	a	yearly	basis	for	the	transactions	
which	are	foreseen	and	repetitive	in	nature.	The	transactions	pursuant	to	the	omnibus	approval	so	granted,	are	audited	and	
a	detailed	quarterly	statement	of	all	such	RPTs	is	placed	before	the	Audit	Committee	for	its	review.

	 The	details	of	transactions	with	Related	Parties	in	the	Form	No.	AOC-2, as	prescribed	by	the	Rule	8(2)	of	the	Companies	
(Accounts)	Rules	2014	are	attached	to	this	report	and	marked	as	Annexure-IV.

20.  SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

	 The	Company	generally	complies	with	all	applicable	secretarial	standards,	issued	by	the	Council	of	the	Institute	of	Company	
Secretaries	of	India	and	made	applicable	as	per	Section	118(10)	of	the	Act.

21.  TECHNOLOGY AND CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	 Details	of	Technology	Absorption	are	given	elsewhere	in	the	report.	We	recognize	the	urgent	need	to	address	environmental	
challenges,	and	we	have	implemented	several	initiatives	to	reduce	our	ecological	footprint.	

22.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND OUTGO

	 The	Company	had	a	total	foreign	exchange	earnings	and	outgo	as	provided	below	during	the	year	ended	31st,	March	2025:

Amount in Cr. (Consolidated)

Foreign Exchange Earnings 51.97
Foreign Exchange Outgo 6.29

23.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

 Your	company	has	always	believed	in	giving	back	to	society	in	a	meaningful	way.	The	Company	has	formulated	a	Corporate	
Social	 Responsibility	 Policy	 and	 the	 Corporate	 Social	 Responsibility	 Committee	 of	 the	 Board	 oversees	 formulating,	
implementing,	monitoring	and	reviewing	the	impact	of	the	Corporate	Social	Responsibility	(CSR)	initiatives	of	the	Company.

	 A	detailed	report	on	the	Corporate	Social	Responsibility	is	enclosed	as	an	Annexure V to this report. 

	 Your	Company	firmly	believes	in	the	importance	of	Corporate	Social	Responsibility	(CSR)	and	strives	to	make	a	positive	
impact	on	society	and	 the	environment.	We	believe	 in	empowering	communities	and	making	a	meaningful	difference	 in	
people's	lives.	We	have	partnered	with	local	educational	institutions	and	organizations	to	provide	educational	opportunities	
and	skill	development	programs	for	underprivileged	communities.	By	focusing	on	education,	we	aim	to	empower	individuals	
and	enhance	their	employability.
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24.  HUMAN RESOURSES

 We	are	committed	to	fostering	a	diverse	and	inclusive	work	environment.	We	promote	equal	opportunities,	respect	for	all	
individuals.	Our	diversity	and	inclusion	initiatives	aim	to	create	a	workplace	that	celebrates	differences	and	ensures	fairness	
and	equality.

 Factors	 such	 as	 a	 pleasant	 and	 safe	 working	 environment,	 fair	 wages,	 and	 opportunities	 for	 growth	 and	 development	
contributed	to	a	healthy	attrition	rate.	The	details	of	various	Human	Resource	initiatives	are	provided	elsewhere	in	the	report.

25.  DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 Your	Company	has	complied	with	the	provisions	relating	to	constitution	of	Internal	Complaints	Committee	under	the	Sexual	
Harassment	of	Women	at	Workplace	(Prevention,	Prohibition	and	Redressal)	Act,	2013.	(POSH	Act).	During	the	year	under	
review,	there	were	no	cases	filed	pursuant	to	this	Act.	Training	was	conducted	to	raise	awareness	for	rights	and	obligations,	
code of conduct under POSH Act. 

	 The	Internal	Committee	is	committed	to	ensure	that	all	the	provisions	and	best	practices	under	the	POSH	Act	are	implemented	
in law and spirit.

1. No.	of	complaints	received	in	the	year Nil
2. No	of	complaints	disposed	off	in	the	year Nil
3. Cases pending for more than 90 days NA
4. No	of	workshops	and	awareness	programs	conducted	in	the	year 1
5 Nature	of	action	by	employer	or	District	officer,	if	any NA

26. COMPANY’S WEBSITE 

 Your	Company	has	its	fully	functional	website	LangTech	for	AI-ML	|	IT	Services	|	Custom	Software	Dev	-	Fidel	which	has	been	
designed	to	exhibit	all	the	relevant	details	about	the	Company.	The	site	carries	a	comprehensive	database	of	information	
of the Company including the Financial Results of your Company, Shareholding Pattern, details of Board Committees, 
Corporate	 Policies/	 Codes,	 business	 activities	 and	 current	 affairs	 of	 your	 Company.	All	 the	mandatory	 information	 and	
disclosures	as	per	the	requirements	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	Companies	Rules,	2014	and	as	per	Regulation	46	of	SEBI	
(Listing	Obligations	&	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.

27.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 Since	the	Company	is	listed	on	NSE	Emerge,	the	Company	is	exempt	from	applicability	of	certain	regulations	pertaining	
to	‘Corporate	Governance’	under	Securities	&	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligations	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	
Regulations, 2015.

	 The	Company	has	been	practicing	 sound	Corporate	Governance	and	 takes	necessary	 actions	 at	 appropriate	 times	 for	
enhancing	and	meeting	stakeholders’	expectations	while	continuing	to	comply	with	the	mandatory	provisions	and	strive	to	
comply	non-mandatory	requirements	of	Corporate	Governance.	

	 Report	on	Corporate	Governance	Practices	and	the	Auditors	Certificate	regarding	compliance	of	conditions	of	Corporate	
Governance	and	certification	by	CEO/Whole	time	Director	&	CFO	is	not	applicable	to	your	Company	as	per	regulation	15(2)
(b)	of	SEBI	(Listing	Obligation	and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.

28.  PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

 The	details	of	Managerial	Remuneration,	Key	Managerial	Personnel	and	employees	of	 the	Company	as	 required	under	
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014	has	been	set	out	as	Annexure VI to this report. 

29.  OTHER DISCLOSURE

	 1.	 Cash	Flow	Statement	for	the	financial	year	ended	March	31,	2025,	is	attached	to	the	Financial	Statements.

	 2.	 No	material	changes	and	commitments	affecting	the	financial	position	of	the	Company	occurred	between	the	end	of	the	 
		 financial	year	to	which	this	financial	statement	relates	and	the	date	of	this	report.

	 3.	 No	significant	and	material	order	has	been	passed	by	 the	 regulators,	courts,	 tribunals	 impacting	 the	going	concern	 
  status and Company’s operations in future.
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 4.	 There	 is	 nothing	 report	 under	 the	 Insolvency	 and	Bankruptcy	Code,	 2016	 this	 for	 the	Financial	Year	 ended	March	 
  31, 2025.

 5.	 Nil	Disclosures:	Your	Directors	state	that	no	disclosure	or	reporting	is	required	in	respect	of	the	following	items	as	there	 
		 were	no	transactions	on	these	items	during	the	year	under	review:

	 		 I.		 The	Company	has	not	accepted	any	deposits	during	the	year	under	review.

	 		 II.	 The	Company	 is	 not	 required	 to	maintain	Cost	Accounting	 records	 as	 per	Rule	 8(5)(ix)(d)	 of	 the	Companies	 
    (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 		 III.	 There	were	no	shares	Issued	(including	sweat	equity	shares)	to	employees	of	the	Company	under	any	scheme.

	 		 IV.	 The	Company	has	subsidiary	and	neither	the	Managing	Director	nor	the	Whole-time	Directors	of	the	Company	 
		 	 	 receive	any	remuneration	or	commission	from	any	of	its	subsidiaries.

	 		 V.	 There	was	no	instance	of	a	difference	between	amount	of	the	valuation	done	at	the	time	of	one-time	settlement	 
		 	 	 and	the	valuation	done	while	taking	loan	form	the	Banks	or	Financial	Institutions.

30.  REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

	 	During	the	year	under	review,	neither	the	Statutory	Auditors	nor	the	Secretarial	Auditor	have	reported	to	the	Audit	Committee,	
under	Section	143(12)	of	the	Act,	any	instances	of	fraud	committed	against	the	Company	by	its	officers	or	employees,	hence,	
there	is	nothing	to	be	mentioned	in	the	Board’s	report	in	this	regard.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

	 As	we	move	forward,	we	remain	committed	to	transparency,	accountability,	and	delivering	sustainable	returns	on	investments	
of	our	shareholders.	Your	feedback	and	insights	continue	to	shape	our	strategies	and	guide	our	decision-making	processes.	
We	value	your	perspectives	and	will	always	strive	to	uphold	the	highest	standards	of	corporate	governance.

 The	Directors	express	their	gratitude	to	the	employees	and	partners	for	their	dedication	and	contribution	to	the	company's	
success.	We	also	extend	our	appreciation	to	our	valued	customers,	suppliers,	and	shareholders	for	their	continued	support	
and trust.

	 We	are	 excited	about	 the	 future	 and	 the	opportunities	 it	 holds.	Together,	we	will	 continue	 to	 build	 a	 brighter	 and	more	
prosperous future.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Fidel Softech Limited

Sunil Kulkarni
Chairman & Executive Director
DIN (00752937)
Flat	No.	6,	Senovar	Apartment,	Lane	No.	5,	
Anand	Park,	Aundh,	Pune	–	411	007,	

Date: April 30, 2025 
Place	:	Pune,	India
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Annexure I
FORM AOC- 1 

(Pursuant	to	first	proviso	to	sub-section	(3)	of	section	129	read	with	rule	5	of	Companies	(Accounts)	Rules,	2O14)

  Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies  
or Joint ventures 

Part A Subsidiaries 
(Information	in	respect	of	each	subsidiary	to	be	presented	with	amounts	in	Rs.)	

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1 Sr.	No. 1
2 Name	of	the	subsidiary Fidelsoft Inc
3 The	date	since	when	subsidiary	was	acquired 1st	January	2025
4 Reporting	period	for	the	subsidiary	concerned,	if	different	from	the	holding	

company's	reporting	period.
Same as Holding Company 
(April to March)

5 Reporting	currency	and	Exchange	rate	as	on	the	last	date	of	the	relevant	
Financial	year	in	the	case	of	foreign	subsidiaries

Currency – US Dollars
Rate	–	85.69/-	Avrg	rate

6 Share capital `42,85,500/-
7 Reserves	and	surplus `7,22,375/-
8 Total assets `76,60,889/-
9 Total	Liabilities `26,53,014/-
10 Investments --
11 Turnover `33,85,692/-
12 Profit	before	taxation `9,15,130/-
13 Provision	for	taxation `1,92,755/-
14 Profit	after	taxation `7,22,375/-
15 Proposed	Dividend --
16 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%	by	Fidel	Softech	Limited

Notes: The	following	information	shall	be	furnished	at	the	end	of	the	statement:	

1.	Names	of	subsidiaries	which	are	yet	to	commence	operations		-	NA

2.	Names	of	subsidiaries	which	have	been	liquidated	or	sold	during	the	year.	–	NA

Part B 

Associates	and	Joint	Ventures	Statement	pursuant	to	Section	129	(3)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2O13,	related	to	Associate	Companies	
and	Joint	Ventures

The	Company	does	not	have	any	associate	and	Joint	Ventures	and	hence	reporting	under	the	said	rule	is	not	applicable	to	the	
Company.  

	 For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of
 Fidel Softech Limited
	 CIN:	L72200PN2004PLC020061

 Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
 Director    Director 
	 DIN:	00752937	 	 	 DIN:	03618459	
	 Place:	Pune	 	 	 Place:	Pune	
	 Date:		April	30,	2025		 	 Date:		April	30,	2025	
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
	 Chief	Financial	Officer	 	 Company	Secretary
	 	 	 	 	 	 ICSI	M.No.	:	A42657	
	 Place:	Pune	 	 	 Place:	Pune
	 Date:		April	30,	2025		 	 Date:		April	30,	2025
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Annexure II

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
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Annexure III
FORM NO. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Fidel Softech Limited
Unit No. 202, 2nd Floor, Marisoft 3, 
West Wing, Marigold Software IT Park, 
Vadgaon Sheri, Pune 411014

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Fidel Softech Limited (CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial 
Year ended on 31st March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’): -

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (during  
  the year under review not applicable to the Company);

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021  
  (during the year under review not applicable to the Company);

  (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021  
  (during the year under review not applicable to the Company);

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993  
  regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client;

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (during the year under  
  review not applicable to the Company); 

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (during the year under review  
 not applicable to the Company); and
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 (i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

(vi) As informed by the Company, no other law(s) is applicable specifically to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited read with the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. mentioned above, subject to the following observations: 

1. During the year under audit, the company submitted form FC-GPR in respect of allotment to overseas investor made in 
year 2007, the same was rejected by Reserve Bank of India / AD Bank i.e. Bank of India for want of correct FIRC and KYC. 
Further, Bank of India vide its letter dated 7th December 2024 has expressed its inability to issue original FIRC and KYC as 
transaction being too old. As informed to me by the management, the Company has decided to approach Reserve Bank of 
India for compounding the delay in the said matter. 

2. During the course of our Audit, we have observed that there are occasional delays in reporting certain required disclosures 
on NSE Emerge platform as required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors including woman directors.  There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during 
the period under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out through majority as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board as the case may be, while the dissenting members views are 
captured.  

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

a) The company incorporated one Wholly Owned Subsidiary in USA under the name and style Fidelsoft Inc. 

Abhijit Dakhawe
Company Secretary
FCS # 6126, CP # 4474
PR No. 5690/2024
UDIN: F006126G000212376 

Place: Pune
Date: April 30, 2025

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
Fidel Softech Limited
Unit No. 202, 2nd Floor, Marisoft 3, 
West Wing, Marigold Software IT Park, 
Vadgaon Sheri, Pune 411014

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test-check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or  
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Abhijit Dakhawe
Company Secretary
FCS # 6126, CP # 4474
PR No. 5690/2024
UDIN: F006126G000212376 

Place: Pune
Date: April 30, 2025
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Annexure IV
FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act 2013
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

 Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or Joint ventures 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered by the company with related parties referred to in sub-sec-
tion (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 

 Fidel Softech Limited has not entered any contract /arrangement /transaction with its related parties which is not in ordinary 
course of business or at Arm’s length during Financial Year 2024-25

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions  at an arm's length basis –

No. Particulars Details Details
(a) Name(s) of the related party and 

nature of relationship
Fidel Technologies KK, Japan, 
Related Party under Section 2(76)(vi) 
of Companies Act, 2013

Fidel Consulting KK, Japan, 
Related Party under Section 
2(76)(vi) of Companies Act, 
2013

(b) Nature of Contracts/arrangements/
transactions

Sale of Services Sale of Services

(c) Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/ transactions

On-going transactions On-going transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any

As per Purchase order/Agreement As per Purchase order/
Agreement

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if 
any

All the transaction are in the ordinary 
course of business and are at arm 
length basis.

All the transaction are in the 
ordinary course of business 
and are at arm length basis.

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any Nil Nil

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Fidel Softech Limited

Sunil Kulkarni
Chairman & Executive Director
DIN (00752937)
Flat No. 6, Senovar Apartment, Lane No. 5, 
Anand Park, Aundh, Pune – 411 007, 

Date: April 30, 2025 
Place : Pune, India
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Annexure V

  Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year ended March 31, 2025

1.   Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

  Our commitments towards Corporate Social Responsibility include but not limited to, promotion of education and healthcare, 
energy and climate change, and betterment of the society through respect for universal human rights and the environment, 
acting with integrity and transparency. The policy and Projects can be accessed on the website of the Company https://www.
fidelsoftech.com/corporate-policies/ 

 The Company has identified and considered areas of operations as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and is being 
spending accordingly 

2.  Composition of CSR Committee:

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website of the Company: https://www.fidelsoftech.com/corporate-policies/ 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. – Not Applicable for the financial year under review.

5. (a)  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). - INR  7,15,35,795/- 

 (b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: INR   14,30,715.90/-

 (c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years – NIL

 (d)  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any - NIL 

 (e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] - INR  14,30,715.90/-

6. (a)  Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) – INR  14,34,000/- 

 (b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - NIL 

 (c)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NIL 

 (d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] -. INR  14,34,000/- 

 (e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

 Sr. No. Name of Director Designation /  
Nature of Directorship

Number of CSR  
Committee Meetings held

Number of Meetings 
attended by member 

during the year
1 Prachi Kulkarni Chairperson 1 1
2 Sunil Kulkarni Member 1 1
3 Girish Desai Member 1 1

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(in `)

Amount Unspent (in `)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 

135(5).
Amount Date of  

transfer
Name of the 

Fund
Amount Date of  

transfer
14,34,000/- 0 NA NA 0 NA
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8. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 
spent in the financial year: NA

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5). – NA 

Sr. 
No.

Short particulars 
of the property or 
asset(s) [including 
complete address 
and location of the 

property]

Pincode of 
the property 
or asset(s)

Date of 
creation

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the 
registered owner

CSR Registration 
Number, if  
applicable

Name Registered 
address

NA

Sd/-
Prachi Kulkarni
DIN 03618459

(Chairman CSR Commitee)

Sd/-
Girish Desai

DIN 08328701
(Member)

7. (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year.

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR  
Account under  

section 135 (6) (in `)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in `)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining to 
be spent in succeeding 

financial years. (in `)

Name of the 
Fund

Amount  
(in `)

Date of  
transfer

NA

Total
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Annexure VI
Disclosure as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of the Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial 
Year ended March 31, 2025

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year March 31, 2024

4. The number of permanent employees on the role of the Company:

 

5. Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
financial year 2024-25 was 13.21%. 

6. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year ended 31st March, 2025 is as per the Remuneration Policy of 
the Company.

7. There is nothing to report under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014

 # All the Non-Executive Directors were not paid any Remuneration except sitting fees in the Financial Year ended March  
31, 2025

 Details of Top Ten Employees of the Company would be provided to any Shareholder who makes a request for the same.

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Chairman & Executive Director: 3.99:1 Chairman & Executive Director: 4.48:1
Managing Director: 3.99:1 Managing Director: 4.48:1
# Non – Executive Directors: NA # Non – Executive Directors: NA 

Median Remuneration is INR 9,01,992/- Median Remuneration is INR 7,44,000/-

Name and Designation % Increase in the remuneration The ratio of remuneration to the 
median remuneration of the em-

ployees
Mr. Mandar Inamdar,
Chief Financial Officer

7.50% 6.37:1

Mrs. Sneha Ratnaparkhi
Company Secretary

5.50% 1.11:1

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
21% 34%

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
204 191

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Fidel Softech Limited

Sunil Kulkarni
Chairman & Executive Director
DIN (00752937)
Flat No. 6, Senovar Apartment, Lane No. 5, 
Anand Park, Aundh, Pune – 411 007, 

Date: April 30, 2025 
Place : Pune, India
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
Fidel Softech Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Fidel Softech Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to 
the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid the Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended (”Accounting Standards”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial 
Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed 
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our 
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying Standalone Financial Statements.

Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Revenue Recognition
(Refer note 20 of the accompanying Standalone Financial 
Statements)
The Company has various streams of revenue with multiple 
types of customer contracts characterized by a large volume 
of transactions. Revenue recognition involves certain key 
judgments relating to identification of contracts with customers, 
determination of transaction price, achievement of milestones 
and completion of contracts. 
Due to multiple types of revenue contracts with large volume 
of transactions and judgment required by the management 
this matter is considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:
• Assessed the appropriateness of the revenue 

recognition accounting policies and its compliances 
with applicable accounting standards. We selected 
samples from various types of customer contracts 
and tested the occurrence, completeness and 
measurement of those transactions by inspecting the 
underlying documents.

• Performed testing for samples of revenue transactions 
recorded closer to the year-end by verifying underlying 
documents, to assess the accuracy of the period 
in which revenue was recognized also inspected 
relevant ledgers, purchase orders, agreements and 
other information that indicate the existence of related 
party relationships or transactions.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
• Assessed the appropriateness of accounting policies 

for unbilled revenue and their compliance with 
applicable accounting standards by testing samples 
of contracts and evaluating timing and measurement 
of revenue recognition.

• Reviewed management’s estimates and assumptions 
for recognizing unbilled revenue, including billing 
schedules and customer acceptance.

2. Transaction with Related Parties
(Refer note 30 of the accompanying Standalone Financial 
Statements)
Revenue from transactions with related parties comprises 
around 27% (approximate) of revenues in FY 2024-25.
Receivables and loans to related parties comprise around 
20% of total assets as on 31 March 2025.
Due to large volume of transactions with related parties 
this matter is considered as a key audit matter.

• Evaluated the completeness, adequacy and 
appropriateness of disclosures made in the 
Standalone Financial Statements of transactions 
(related parties) in accordance with the requirements 
of AS.

• Tested recoverability of loans, receivables and 
investments in related parties including management’s 
basis of considering such amounts recoverable and 
checking the repayment of such balances over the 
year. 

• Obtained and read the personal guarantee provided 
by promoters of the Company in relation to loans 
and receivables from related party namely LinguaSol 
Private Limited.

• Evaluated the design and tested operating 
effectiveness of the relevant internal financial controls 
to identify and disclose revenue of related parties and 
ensuring compliance with statutory requirements, 
assessing recoverability of the amount due from the 
related parties.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Board’s Report, including annexures thereto, but does not include the Standalone Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material  misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these the 
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  
  necessary for the purpose of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our  
  examination of those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in  
  agreement with the relevant books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid the Standalone Financial Statements comply with the accounting standards specified  
  under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors for the year ended 31st March 2025 taken on  
  record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified for the year ended 31st March 2025 from being  
  appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating  
  effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified  
  opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial  
  reporting. 

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies  
  (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the  
  explanations given to us:  

   i. The Company has no pending litigations which may have an impact on its financial position.  

   ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any  
   material foreseeable losses.  (Refer Note 39 to the Standalone Financial Statements)

   iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund  
   by the Company. 

   iv. a.   The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note  
    41 in Notes to the Accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed  
    funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)  
    or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in  
    writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other  
    persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate  
    Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

    b. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note  
    41 in Notes to the Accounts), no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or  
    entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in  
    writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons  
    or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  
    or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

    c. Based on audit procedures, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the  
    representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

   v.       The Company has declared the dividend during the year in compliance of Section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.  
   The final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 in respect of such dividend  
   declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of  
   dividend. (Refer Note 43 to the Standalone Financial Statements)

   vi.    Based on our examination, the company, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account  
   which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

  Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit  trail feature being tampered with.  
  Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
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3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section  
 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the  
 Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration  
 paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has  
 not prescribed other details under Section 197 (16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Anand Jog
Partner
Membership No.:  108177
UDIN: 25108177BMJBPO6508
Pune, April 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The annexure referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent 
Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 
2025

We report that:

(i)  (a)  (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

 (b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management during the year and material 
discrepancies were not noticed during such verification.

 (c)  The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, Clause 3(i) (c) of the Order regarding title deeds 
of immovable properties is not applicable.

 (d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) & intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, 
Clause 3(i) (d) of the Order regarding Revaluation of PPE and intangible assets is not applicable.

 (e)  According to the information, explanations given and represented to us by the management of company, no proceedings 
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The Company is a service company, primarily engaged in content localization services, manpower staffing services and  
 other related services. Accordingly, the Company does not hold any inventory. 

       Also, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits of `1 Crore which is less than limit prescribed of `five  
 crores under sub-clause 3(ii)(b). Hence, reporting under paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) During the year, the Company has made investments in Fixed Deposit with Scheduled Bank. According to the information  
 and explanations provided to us, such investments are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.  

 The Company has granted unsecured loans to Company, namely LinguaSol Private Limited (Amount outstanding inclusive  
 of Interest as on March 31, 2025 is `3,32,08,753), which is a party covered in the register maintained under Section 189  
 of the Companies Act. 

 a. In absence of formal agreement for the loans given, we are unable to comment whether or not the terms and conditions of  
  grant of such loans are prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

 b. During FY 21-22, schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Accordingly, Repayment  
  of principal amount of loans and receipts of interest are regular during the year.

 c. No loans or advances in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, have been renewed or extended or  
  fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to same parties.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

 a. In respect of loans, made investments or given guarantees which are covered by the provisions of Section 185 of the  
  Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

 b. In respect of other loans and investments made by the Company, provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013  
  have been complied with.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits  
 from the public under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there  
 under.

 As informed and represented to us no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law  
 Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunals. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the  
 Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost  
 records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, for any of the products and services rendered of the company.  
 Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the  
  Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including  
  Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Service Tax, Goods &  



54

20th Annual Report 

  Services Tax, Employees’ State Insurance, Cess and any other material statutory dues have generally been deposited  
  regularly during the year by the Company with appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in few  
  cases. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues 
were in arrears as at 31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (c) There are no dues on account of income tax, goods and services tax and any other statutory dues as may be applicable, 
that have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 31st March 2025. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by management, we have not come across  
 any transactions, not recorded in the books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year  
 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) Based on representation given by the management of the Company and according to the information and explanations given  
 to us-

 a. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to 
any lender.

 b. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institute or government or any government 
authority.

 c. Company has not obtained any money by way of term loan during the year. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(ix)
(c) is not applicable.

 d. On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has 
not used funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes.

 e. The Company has a subsidiary during the year but does not have any associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting 
under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is applicable for the subsidiary.

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

 a. Moneys raised by way of initial public offer of the equity shares of the Company during the FY 22-23, have been, prima 
facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised. The unutilized portion has 
been invested in debt mutual funds and fixed deposits with scheduled bank. 

 b. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible 
debentures during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting upon the true and fair view of the Standalone  
 Financial Statements, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us:

 a. No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period, nor have we 
been informed of any such case by the Management.

 b. No report under Section 143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government has been filed during the year.

 c. No whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.  
 Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the  
 Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions  
 have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

 a. The Company’s internal audit system is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

 b. Reports submitted by the internal auditor during the year have been considered during the course of our audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered  
 into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xv)  
 of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

 a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.
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 c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

 d. The Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 and the immediately  
  preceding financial year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xviii)  
  of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing  
 and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying  
 the Standalone Financial Statement, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our  
 examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that  
 any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing  
 at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet. We, however, state  
 that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the  
 facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within  
 a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:

 a. In respect of other than ongoing projects, there is no unspent amount that would be required to be transferred to a Fund  
  specified in Schedule VII to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with  
  second proviso to section 135(5) of the said Act. Accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not  
  applicable. 

 b. There are no unspent amounts with respect to ongoing projects that would be required to be transferred to a special  
  account in compliance of provisions of Section 135(6) of the Act.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Anand Jog
Partner
Membership No.:  108177
UDIN: 25108177BMJBPO6508
Pune, April 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The annexure as referred to in paragraph 2(f) in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Fidel Softech Limited on the Standalone  
Financial Statements of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fidel Softech Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Anand Jog     
Partner
Membership No.: 108177
UDIN: 25108177BMJBPO6508
Pune, April 30, 2025
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Particulars Note No. As at  As at 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Shareholder's funds   
Share capital 3  1,375.06   1,375.06 
Reserves and surplus 4  3,149.78   2,374.75 
   4,524.84   3,749.81 
Non-current liabilities   
Long Term Provisions 5  224.88   170.33 
   224.88   170.33 
Current liabilities   
Trade payables  7  
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises  
and small enterprises; and   11.36   6.07 
Total outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises   180.44   160.16 
Other current liabilities 8  318.63   286.19 
Short Term provisions 9  47.30   29.64 
   557.73   482.06 
TOTAL   5,307.45   4,402.20 
ASSETS   
Non-current assets   
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets   
Property, Plant and Equipment 10  14.09   12.76 
Intangible Assets 10  2.00   5.42 
Deferred tax assets (net) 11  74.53   59.43 
Non Current Investments 12  42.86   -   
Long term loans and advances 13  252.09   255.53 
Other Non Current Assets 14  108.70   327.58 
   494.27   660.72 
Current assets   
Current investments 15  2,186.95   1,567.32 
Trade receivables 16  1,602.80   1,205.14 
Cash and bank balances 17  768.59   352.26 
Short-term loans and advances 18  251.78   568.93 
Other current assets 19  3.06   47.83 
   4,813.18   3,741.48 

Total   5,307.45   4,402.20 

Standalone Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025
(` in lakhs)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025

Summary of Material  Accouting  Policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3-51
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue   
Revenue from operations 20  5,480.54   4,009.12 
Other income 21  98.20   93.89 
Total Income   5,578.74   4,103.01 

Expenses   

Cost of Services 22  1,656.89   1,179.48 

Employee benefits expense 23  2,302.21   1,699.74 

Finance costs 24  -     -   

Depreciation and amortization expense 10  15.82   21.77 

Other expenses 25  362.34   399.89 

Total expenses   4,337.26   3,300.88 

Profit before exceptional items and tax   1,241.48   802.13 

Exceptional items:   

Profit before tax   1,241.48   802.13 

Tax expense   

    Current tax   325.65   199.54 

    Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier years (net)   4.64  (4.67)

    Deferred tax  (15.10)   1.32 

Profit for the year   926.29   605.94 

Earnings per share (Face value of `10 each)   

Basic and diluted (`) 26  6.74   4.41 
 
 
Summary of significant accounting policies  2  
Notes to the financial statements 3-51
              

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025



60

20th Annual Report 

Statement of Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2025 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024
  
Cash flow from operating activities:  
Profit before tax  1,241.48   802.13 
Adjustments for:  
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  15.82   21.77 
Interest income (58.16) (55.24) 
Loss/(profit) on assets sold  -    (0.09) 
Loss / (profit) on sale of investments (3.88)  (28.36) 
Bad Debt ( Inclusive of Provision for Doubtful Debt) (4.33)   15.54 
Sundry Balances Written back (0.71)  (4.83) 
Excess Provision Written back  -    (0.54) 
Impairment Loss on Investment  -     0.15 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss  -    11.89
Income from Dividend  -    (1.40) 
  -     -   
 (51.26)  (41.09) 
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes  1,190.22   761.04 
  
Adjustment for changes in working capital:  
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables (393.32)  (258.77) 
Decrease/(Increase) in Short-term loans and advances  253.90  (122.30) 
Decrease/(Increase) in Other current assets  32.60  (4.08) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  54.55   6.48 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables   26.26   45.36 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities  32.44   103.57 
Increase/(Decrease) in Short-term provisions  17.66  (4.24) 
Cash (used in) operations  1,214.31   527.07 
Income tax paid (307.97)  (236.96) 
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)  906.34   290.11 

Cash flow from investing activities: 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (13.73)  (8.85) 
Sale of Fixed Assets  -     0.48 
Interest received on bank deposits  32.20   27.48 
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of investments (619.62)  (151.11) 
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of non current investments (42.86)   -   
Proceeds from sale/( purchase) of  Non Current Deposits  218.89  (228.61) 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Deposits (49.11)   204.39 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans given  46.17   98.03 
Interest received on intercorporate loans  36.32   17.34 
Profit earned on sale of investments  3.88   28.36 
Income from dividend  -     1.40 
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (387.86)  (11.08) 

 (Contd.)
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Statement of Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended March 31,2025 (Contd.)
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 
 31 March 2025  31 March 2024

Cash flow from financing activties:  
Dividend Paid (151.26)  (96.25) 
  
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (151.26)  (96.25)  
  
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (D=A+B+C)  367.22   182.78 
 
Cash and cash equivalents:  
At the beginning of the year (refer note 17(A) for detailed breakup)  299.14   116.36 
At the end of the year (refer note 17 (A) for detailed breakup)  666.38   299.14 

Cash & Cash equivalents breakup:  
Cash on hand  0.81   0.34 
Balances with banks  665.56   298.80 
 

The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in AS3, 'Statement of Cash 
Flows'.   
Previous Year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1.  Corporate Information

 Fidel Softech Private Limited was incorporated on 24th December 2004. It is classified as Non-govt company and is registered 
at Registrar of Companies, Pune. The company is involved in implementing innovative technology solutions & services with 
local language delivery & support. It specializes in Language engineering, Enterprise product services & cloud infrastructure 
services. Fidel Softech Private Limited was converted to Public Limited Company on April 13, 2022 thu, now named as Fidel 
Softech Limited. It was listed on SME Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE EMERGE) on 10th June 2022.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

 a) Basis of preparation

  i) The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting  
  Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the  
  Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the  
  Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”), as applicable. The financial statements  
  have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.  

 b)  Use of Estimates

  The preparation  of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP  requires the Management to make estimates 
and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the 
reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences 
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

 c)  (i)  Property, Plant and Equipment

    Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost  
  of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes  
  (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making  
  the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses.

  (ii)  Depreciation

    Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful life  
  prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 

    The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate. In case of  
  a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life. Property, Plant and  
  Equipment are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefits are expected from  
  their use and disposal.

 d)  (i)  Intangible Fixed Assets

    Intangible fixed assets that are acquired by the Company i.e. Software are measured initially at cost. After initial  
  recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.  
  Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to  
  which it relates.

    Product development costs are recognized as intangible fixed assets, when feasibility has been established, the  
  Company has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and it is probable that  
  the asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

  (ii)  Amortization

    Amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is estimated  
  to be significantly different from the previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. If there  
  has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method  
  is changed to reflect the changed pattern.

 e)  Impairment of Assets

  The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any 
indication of  impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is 
arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. 

  When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting 
periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 f)  Revenue Recognition

 1.  Revenue from Localisation and Consulting projects:

   Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been  
  approved in writing by the parties to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed to perform their  
  respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon  
  transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”) to customers in an amount that  
  reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products or services  
  (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such  
  uncertainty is resolved.

   Revenue with respect to time and-material contracts is recognized over the period of time as the related services are  
  performed.

   Revenue with respect to fixed price contracts where performance obligation is transferred over time and where there  
  is no uncertainty as to measurability or collection of consideration is recognized in accordance with the completion of  
  milestones defined in customer contracts or based on proportionate performance method. In case of short term  
  contracts, such revenue is recognised using completed contract method.

  2.  Interest Income

    Interest Income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of  
  interest.

 g)  Foreign currency transactions

  Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

  Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date 
are restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items of the Company are carried at historical cost.

  Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the 
Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

h) (i) Employee benefits

  1)  Short Term Employee Benefits

    All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term  
  employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences etc. and the expected  
  cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

  2)  Post Employment Benefits

    (i) Defined Contribution Plans: The Company’s state governed provident fund scheme is defined contribution  
   plans. The contribution paid/payable under the scheme is recognized during the period in which the employee  
   renders the related service 

    (ii)  Defined Benefit Plans: The employees’ have gratuity scheme in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity  
   Act, 1972 and is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans  
   is determined based on actuarial valuation carried as at Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit  
   Method which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit  
   entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

     The obligation is measure at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for  
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   determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields  
   on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity periods approximating to the terms of  
   related obligations. Actuarial gain and losses are recognized immediately in the profit & loss account.

    3)  Long Term Employee Benefits

     The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences is recognized in the  
   same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in note above. 

  h)  (ii) Employee benefits- Stock appreciation Rights plan

     The Company has issued Stock Appreciation Rights ('SARs') to some employees vide Stock Appreciation  
   Rights Plan in April 2018

     Expenses pertaining to SARs is recognised on time-proportion basis from grant date to vesting date based  
   upon specified service contions set out in the companys SAR plan

     The difference between grant price and the fair value of the equity shares on the reporting date is recognised as  
   expense in the profit and loss account with corresponding rise in the liability being a cash settled stock appreciation  
   rights plan

     The company re-estimates the fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting period and will also do so at the  
   date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period as per principles stated  
   in guidance note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India namely " Accounting for Share Based  
   Payments ( Revised 2020 ) 

     The expense and corresponding liability recognised in the financial statements is based on the share valuation  
   from a registered valuer using Discounted Cash flow technique 

    i) Taxes on Income

     Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the  
   applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

     Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the  
   accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  
   Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the  
   reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised  
   for timing differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent  
   that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can be  
   realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses and items relating to  
   capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing  
   evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets  
   and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the  
   Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance  
   sheet date for their realisability.  

j)   (i)  Operating Leases

    Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the  
  lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of  
  Profit and Loss over the lease term. 

  (i)  Finance Leases

    The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease rentals is capitalised as Fixed  
  Assets with corresponding amount disclosed as lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted  
  against the lease liability and the interest component is charged to Profit and Loss Statement. 

 k) Investments

  Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of the acquisition are 
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. However, that portion of 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

long-term investments which is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date is also presented under 
‘current investment’ as current portion of long term investments in consonance with the current/non-current classification 
scheme of Schedule II of Act. Long-term investments are valued at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in 
value, determined separately for each individual investment.

  Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately 
in respect of each category of investments. Any reduction in the carrying amount and any reversal of such reduction is 
charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 l) Provisions and contingencies

  A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent assets are not 
recognised in the financial statements. 

 m)  Cash flow statement

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

 n) Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

  Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an 
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 o) Earnings per Share

  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary 
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 p) Operating Cycle:

  Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. As a result, current assets comprise elements that 
are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date and current liabilities comprise elements that are 
due for settlement within 12 months after the reporting date. 

 q) Segment Reporting:

  The Company is operating only in one segment, namely Language Technology Services and Consultancy Services. As 
a part of secondary reporting geographical segments are considered based on the location of customer. The Company 
operates in two geographical segments viz in India and outside India.

  The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the Accounting Standard 17 with the following 
additional policies for segment reporting:

  I)  Revenue have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment

  II)  Segment assets include those directly identifiable with the respective segments based on location of assets. 
  Unallocable assets represent the assets that relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment. 
  Unallocable assets mainly comprise of tax assets, investments, loans & advances, etc.
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3. Share Capital
(` in lakhs)

3.1 Reconciliation of shares outstanding

3.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share 
in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting 
rights of an equity share holder 

a) On show of hands,every member present in person shall have one vote; 

b) On a poll,the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share capital of the company.
Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to whole or any part of the assets of the company , 
whether they shall consist of the property of the same kind or not.

3.3 Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
 Number of shares  Amount  Number of shares  Amount 

Authorised
Equity shares of face value `10/- each  20,000,000  2,000.00  20,000,000  2,000.00 

 20,000,000  2,000.00  20,000,000  2,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of face value of `10/- each fully paid up  13,750,560  1,375.06  13,750,560.00  1,375.06 
Total  13,750,560  1,375.06  13,750,560.00  1,375.06 

Equity share movement during five years preceeding 31st March 2025  

A)  Equity shares issued as bonus in FY2021-22       

 The Company allotted 98,49,996 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of profits transferred from 
  retained earnings amounting to  ` 9,84,99,960, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed after taking the consent of  
 shareholders through postal ballot. 

B)  Equity shares after listing on National Stock Exchange in FY2022-23      

 The Company was listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) during FY 2022-23 and issued 36,48,000 equity shares  
 amounting to  ` 3,64,80,000. 

Particulars As at  31st March 2025  As at 31 March 2024 
 Number of shares  Amount  Number of shares  Amount 

 Equity Shares  , 
 At the commencement and at the end of the year  13,750,560  1,375.06  13,750,560  1,375.06
 Bonus Shares Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
 Equity Shares Issued during the year  -    -   -  - 
 At the end of the year  13,750,560  1,375.06  13,750,560  1,375.06 

 Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

 Number of shares  % held  Number of shares  % held 
Equity Shares
Sunil Sudhakar Kulkarni   7,626,996 55.47%   7,599,996 55.27%
Prachi Sunil Kulkarni   2,407,000 17.50%  2,405,000 17.49%
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3.4 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year  

4. Reserves and surplus
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

At the commencement of the year   2,374.75   1,865.07 

Add: Profit/Loss for the year  926.29   605.94 

Less: Dividend Paid during the year (151.26)  (96.25) 

Balance in the statement of profit and loss  3,149.78   2,374.75 

Total  3,149.78   2,374.75 

5. Long term provisions
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits  

    Compensated absences (Refer note 31)  44.38   34.81 

    Gratuity (Refer note 31)  180.50   135.52 

Total  224.88   170.33 

6. Short term Borrowings
(` in lakhs)

7. Trade payables
(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured 

Loan repayable on demand 

Total  -     -   

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises  11.36   6.07 
Total Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises    180.44   160.16 

Total  191.80   166.22 

Name of the promoter As at 31st March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
 Number of 

shares 
 % held  % change in 

shareholding 
 Number of 

shares 
 % held  % change in 

shareholding 
Sunil Sudhakar Kulkarni  7,626,996 55.47% 0.20%  7,599,996 55.27% 0%
Prachi Sunil Kulkarni  2,407,000 17.50% 0.01%  2,405,000 17.49% 0%
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year  11.35   6.07 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year  -     0.03 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Trade Payable Aging Schedule for the Financial Year 2024-25

Trade Payable Aging Schedule for the Financial Year 2023-24

Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The Company had requested confirmation from all the creditors regarding their status under the Micro, Small, and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As per the replies received from the creditors, provision for interest that may be payable (in 
accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) on delayed payments to its 
micro or small suppliers is recorded.       

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Particulars Unbilled 
Payables

Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 
31st March 2025

Less than 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

Total

MSME  -    11.36  -    -    -    -    11.36 
Others  -    173.20  3.75  3.19  0.23  0.05  180.44 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total :  -    184.56  3.75  3.19  0.23  0.05  191.80 

Particulars Unbilled 
Payables

Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 
31st March 2024

Less than 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 
Years

Total

MSME  -    6.07  -    -    -    -    6.07 
Others  -    96.46  62.22  0.66  0.71  0.10  160.16 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total :  -    102.52  62.22  0.66  0.71  0.10  166.22 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory dues payable:  48.67   37.98 
Employee Dues Payable  145.53   130.77 
Unclaimed Dividend  1.50   0.59 
Advance from Customers  1.80   0.94 
Interest Payable for MSME Vendors  -     0.03 
Provision for other expenses  119.65   114.90 
Other Liabilities  1.48   0.99 
Total  318.63   286.19 

8. Other current liabilities
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provision for employee benefits: 
   Compensated absences (Refer note 31)  12.44   8.13 
   Gratuity (Refer note 31)  34.86   21.52 
Total  47.30   29.64 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

9. Short-term provisions
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred Tax Asset on :  
Depreciation  5.86   7.09 
Provision for Employee benefits  68.50   50.33 
Other Disallowances  0.17   2.01 
Deferred tax (Liability)/Asset [Net]  74.53   59.43 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Loan to Related Party. (Refer Note 30)  252.09   255.53 

Total  252.09   255.53 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Secured, considered good:  

Bank deposits more than 12 months:  

   Other Deposits in Bank  63.60   282.49 

Other Deposits  45.10   45.10 

Total  108.70   327.58 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Current Investments  
Investments in Equity Instruments (unquoted) 

   LinguaSol Private Limited (1500 shares of face value `10 each) (Refer Note 30)  -     0.15 

   FidelSoft Inc USA  (5 Million Shares of face value of USD 0.01 each)  42.86   -   

Less :Impairment   -    (0.15) 

Total  42.86  -

The Company has complied with the number of Layers prescribed under clause (87) of Sec 2 of the Act read with The Companies 
(Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

11. Deferred tax Liabilities/Assets
(` in lakhs)

13. Long Term Loans and Advances
(` in lakhs)

14. Other Non Current Assets
(` in lakhs)

12. Non Current Investments
(` in lakhs)



72

20th Annual Report 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current Investments  
Mutual Funds (Refer Note 34)  2,186.95   1,567.32 
Total  2,186.95   1,567.32 

Particulars As at  As at 
 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured 
Undisputed-  
Considered good  1,602.80   1,205.14 
Considered doubtful  0.67   7.87 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (0.67)  (7.87) 

Disputed - 
Considered good   -     -   
Considered doubtful   -     -   
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  -     -   
Total  1,602.80   1,205.14 

15. Current Investments
(` in lakhs)

16. Trade receivables
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Trade Receivable Aging Schedule for FY 2024-25
(` in lakhs)

Trade Receivable  Unbilled 
Receivables 

Not Due Outstanding for followign periods from due date of Payment
Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
to 1 Year

1 - 2 
Years

2 - 3 
Years

More than 
3 Years

Total

Considered Good
Undisputed  1.40 1,169.46  246.67  29.68  63.35  64.42  29.22  1,602.80 
Disputed  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Sub Total (i)  1.40 1,169.46  246.67  29.68  63.35  64.42  29.22  1,602.80 
Considered doubtful
Undisputed  -    -    -    -    0.67  -    -    0.67 
Disputed  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Sub Total (ii)  -    -    -    -    0.67  -    -    0.67 
Less: Provision for 
Doubtful Debts

 -    -    -    -   (0.67)  -    -   (0.67) 

Sub Total (iii)  -    -    -    -   (0.67)  -    -   (0.67) 
Total (i+ii+iii)  1.40 1,169.46  246.67  29.68  64.68  64.42  29.22  1,602.80 
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Trade Receivable Aging Schedule for FY 2023-24
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  As at 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents   
Cash on hand   0.81   0.34 
Balances with banks   
    -on current accounts   356.51   249.52 
    -bank deposits with remaining  maturity less than three months    307.55   48.69 
    -dividend accounts   1.50   0.59 
(A) Subtotal   666.37   299.14 
Other bank balances   -     -   
    -bank deposits with remaining  maturity more than three 
    months and less than twelve months.   102.22   53.12 
(B) Subtotal   102.22   53.12 

Total (A+B)   768.59   352.26 

17. Cash and bank balances
(` in lakhs)

Details of bank balances/deposits  As at  As at 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bank balances available on demand/deposits with remaining maturity of 3 
months or less included under 'Cash and cash equivalents'.   664.07   298.21 
Bank deposits due to mature within 12 months of the reporting 
date included under 'Other bank balances'.   102.22   53.12 
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date 
included under ‘Other non current assets’   63.60   282.49 
Total   829.89   633.82 

Trade Receivable  Unbilled 
Receivables 

Not Due Outstanding for followign periods from due date of Payment
Less 

than 6 
Months

6 Months 
to 1 Year

1 - 2 
Years

2 - 3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total

Considered Good
Undisputed  7.92  391.73  700.90  5.37  73.59  22.08  11.46  1,205.14 
Disputed  -   
Sub Total (i)  7.92  391.73  700.90  5.37  73.59  22.08  11.46  1,205.14 
Considered doubtful
Undisputed  -    -    -    6.27  1.59  0.01  -    7.87 
Disputed  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Sub Total (ii)  -    -    -    6.27  1.59  0.01  -    7.87 
Less: Provision for 
Doubtful Debts

 -    -   (6.27) (1.59) (0.01)  -   (7.87) 

Sub Total (iii)  -    -    -   (6.27) (1.59) (0.01)  -   (7.87) 
Total (i+ii+iii)  -    391.73  700.90  5.37  73.59  22.08  11.46  1,205.14 
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Particulars  As at  As at 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Balance with Government Authorities  

b) GST Authorities   111.94   336.14 

Prepaid expenses   32.38   25.26 

Advance income tax and tax deducted at source (net of provisions)   21.56   42.09 

Loan to Related Party. (Refer Note 30)    80.00   122.73 

Other Deposits   5.90   42.71 
Total   251.78   568.93 

18. Short-term loans and advances
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars  As at  As at 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)   
Unbilled revenue   1.40   7.92 
Advances to Employees   1.03   5.97 
Advances to Suppliers   0.63   21.77 
Interest accrued on intercorporate loan    -     11.34 
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit   -     0.82 
Total   3.06   47.82 

19. Other current assets
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Domestic Sales & Services   283.23   162.87 
Export Sales & Services   5,197.31   3,846.24  
Total   5,480.54   4,009.12 

20. Revenue from Operations 
(` in lakhs)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on loan   -     -   
Total   -     -   

24. Finance Costs
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Broadband & Other Direct Expenses   40.50   29.61 
Computer Rent   80.87   39.03 
Office Rent   149.50   131.98 
Professional Fees   1,386.02   978.86 
Total   1,656.89   1,179.48 

22. Cost of Services
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, allowances and bonus   2,134.74   1,543.48 
Salaries, allowances and bonus - Directors   72.00   72.00 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds (also refer Note 31)   61.13   58.21 
Staff welfare expenses   34.34   26.05 
Total   2,302.21   1,699.74 

23. Employee Benefit Expenses
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on Deposits   31.38   26.56 
Interest on Loan    24.98   28.68 
Short Term Capital Gain   3.04   12.47 
Miscellaneous Income   36.17   8.81 
Interest Received on Income Tax Refund   1.79   -   
Dividend income   -     1.40 
Long Term Capital Gain   0.84   15.88 
Profit on Sale of Asset   -     0.09 
Total   98.20   93.89 

21.Other income
(` in lakhs)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Legal and professional fees   167.04   96.42 

Director Sitting Fees   4.50   3.30 

Travelling and Conveyance expenses   50.35   84.12 

License Fees   20.87   21.61 

Rates and taxes   8.67   5.37 

Courier Charges   0.48   1.48 

Insurance Charges   0.80   -   

Bank Charges   4.96   8.27 

Office Expenses   7.47   2.99 

Advertising and Marketing Expense   25.32   38.71 

Payment to auditors   9.18   9.32 

Printing and Stationery   2.42   3.23 

Brokerage and Commission   5.30   -   

Bad Debts (write back)  (4.33)   15.54 

Prior Period Expense (Refer Note 36)   0.29   0.36 

Foreign Exchange Gain and Loss   31.44   84.99 

CSR Expenses   14.34   12.04 

Telephone Expenses   0.78   0.73 

Miscellaneous Expenses   12.46   11.41 

Total   362.34   399.89 

 

25. Other expenses
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
    
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders A  926.29   605.94 
    -   
Weighted average number of equity shares of face value of 
Rs 10 each outstanding during the year  B   13,750,560.00   13,750,560.00 

Basic and Diluted profit per equity share of face value Rs 10 each (in INR)  (A/B)   6.74   4.41 

26   Earnings per share
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
As auditor  
Statutory audit   5.70   5.70 
Tax audit   1.20   1.20 
For Other Services   2.13   2.00 
Out of Pocket Expenses   0.15   0.42 
Total   9.18   9.32 
 

27  Auditors' remuneration
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sale of Services   
- Underwriter Translation   3,482.86   2,243.40 
- IT  Services   1,714.45   1,602.84 
   -     -   
Total   5,197.31   3,846.24 
 

28  Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  Year Ended 
  31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Professional Fees   583.09   507.25 
Licence Fees   21.76   22.30 
Membership and Sponsorship Fees   5.41   2.62 
Travelling spend   14.78   5.23 
Marketing spend   0.65   2.82 
Others   3.32   7.21 
Total   629.01   547.44 

29  Expenses in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
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30  Related party disclosures 

a) Key management personnel and persons exercising significant influence.    
 1 Prachi Kulkarni (Managing Director)
 2 Sunil Kulkarni (Director)
 3 Mandar Inamdar (Chief Financial Officer)
 4 Sneha Ratnaparkhi (Company Secretary) 
 5 Neha Joshi (Company Secretary) till date 30th October 2023      

b)  Enterprises under Common Control    
 1 Fidel Technologies KK Japan
 2 Fidel Consulting KK Japan
 3 CoolPro International Private Limited
 4 LinguaSol Private Limited
 5 FidelSoft INC (USA) -100% Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

c) Disclosure of related party transactions:
(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of transaction Year ended  
31st March 2025

Year ended  
31st March 2024

1 Fidel Consulting KK
Export of Sevices  530.26  492.69 

2 Fidel Technologies KK
Export of Services  926.23  848.82 
Reimbursement (Paid/Payable)/Receivable ( net) (474.51) (165.09)

3 Linguasol Private Limited
Loan to Linguasol - Repayment receipts (80.00) (112.50)
Interest on loan  24.98  28.68 
Office Rent income  4.00  1.50 

4 CoolPro International Private Limited
Domestic Professional Services  5.58  4.73 

5 Sunil Kulkarni
Directors Remuneration  36.00  36.00 
Dividend Paid  83.60  53.20 

6 Prachi Kulkarni
Directors Remuneration  36.00  36.00 
Dividend Paid  26.48  16.82 

7 Mandar Inamdar
Remuneration  47.82  48.55 

8 Sneha Ratnaparkhi
Remuneration  9.16  3.04 

9 Neha Joshi
Remuneration  -    7.04 

10 FidelSoft INC (USA)
Export of Services  10.28  -   
Total  1,185.88  1,299.47 
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d) Amount due to/from related parties 
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

31 Employee Benefits      
 b) Defined contribution plans    
  The Company has recognized INR 60,11,191   (2024: INR 55,93,320) towards provident fund , INR 25050   (2024: INR 

11,076) towards labour welfare fund and INR 76,929    (2024: INR 2,16,701) towards employee state insurance in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  Defined benefit plans 
 c) Gratuity:    
  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company was required to provide post employment benefit 

to its employees in the form of gratuity.
  The disclosures relating to actuarial assumptions in accordance with AS 15 (Revised) are provided below:  

 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transaction Year ended  
31st March 2025

Year ended  
31st March 2024

Amount Amount
1 Receivables (Net)

Linguasol Private Limited
Loan to Linguasol (Receivable)  332.09  378.26 
Interest accrued on loan (Receivable)  -    11.34 
Software Professional Service, Underwriter Translation & Manpower Re-
cruitment Services (Receivable)

 93.65  97.97 

Fidel Consulting KK
Export of Sevices  138.39  70.69 
Fidel Technologies KK
Export of services  482.54  348.13 
Coolpro International Pvt Ltd
Software Professional Service (Receivable)  0.09  0.46 
Prachi Kulkarni
Advance Receivable  -    5.31 
FidelSoft INC (USA)
Software Professional Service (Receivable)  10.28  -   
Total Receivable  1,057.04  912.17 

2 Payable (Net)
Remuneration Payable to Prachi Kulkarni  2.36  2.34 
Remuneration Payable to Sunil Kulkarni  2.36  2.34 
Reimbursement Payable to Sunil Kulkarni  0.05  7.27 
Reimbursement Payable to Prachi Kulkarni  0.13  -   
Remuneration Payable to Sneha Ratnaparkhi  0.66  0.68 
Remuneration Payable to Mandar Inamdar  2.49  2.20 
Trade Payable to  Fidel Technologies KK Japan  35.77  51.94 
Total Payable  43.82  66.75 

3 Investment in Equity Shares
FidelSoft INC (USA)  42.86  -   
Total  42.86  -   
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

 The plan has not been funded as on the valuation date.     

 Discount rate    

 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Government bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the  
 estimated terms of the obligations.    

 Salary escalation    

 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other rele 
 vant factors.     

 Methodology     

 Projected unit credit method (PUC) is used to assess the present value of obligation and the related current service cost  
 and interest cost. 

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of  Projected  Benefit Obligation  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period   157.04   148.02 

Interest Cost   11.17   10.71 

Past Service Cost   

Service cost Curtailment   40.86   35.33 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations   10.19  (34.55)

Benefits Paid  (3.90) (2.47)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period   215.36   157.04 

(` in lakhs)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Current Service Cost   40.86   35.33 

Net Interest Cost   11.17   10.71 

Actuarial  (Gains)/Losses   10.19  (34.55)

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss   62.22   11.49 

Particulars  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Mortality table  IALM(2012-14) ult IALM(2012-14) ult
Discount rate  6.60% 7.20%
Rate of increase in compensation levels   10% 15%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years)   4.84   4.85 
Retirement Age  60 years 60 years
Withdrawal Rate   
Age upto 30 years   20% 20%
Age 31 - 40 years   20% 20%
Age 41 - 50 years   20% 20%
Age above 50 years  20% 20%
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(` in lakhs)
Balance Sheet Reconciliation  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Opening Net Liability  (157.04) (148.02)
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss  (62.22) (11.49)
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)   3.90   2.47 

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet  (215.36) (157.04)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Leave Encashment:
Data Summary  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Number of Employees  204 191

Total Salary (Leave Encashment)   73.54   51.95 

Total Salary (Leave Availment)   190.56   158.39 

Average Age  34.5 34.01

Average Past Service  3.74 3.49 

Total Leave Days   0.03   0.03 

(` in lakhs)
Valuation Results  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Discontinuance Liability   49.93   31.05 
Projected Benefit Obligation   56.82   42.94 

(` in lakhs)
Current & Non-Current Liability  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Funding Status    Unfunded  
Unfunded 
Fund Balance   N.A.   N.A. 
Current Liability **   12.44   8.13 
Non-Current Liability   44.38   34.81 

Valuation Assumptions  31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

(i) Financial Assumptions   
Salary Escalation Rate   
For first year  00.00% p.a. 00.00% p.a. 
For subsequent years  10.00% p.a. 15.00% p.a.
Discount Rate  6.60% p.a.  7.20% p.a. 
  (Indicative G.   (Indicative G.  
  Bonds Bonds
  referenced on  referenced on
  31-03-2025) 31-03-2024) 
(ii) Demographic Assumptions   
  Mortality Rate Indian Assured  
Indian Assured  Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
   (2012-14) Ultimate      2012-14 Ultimate
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars  31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
  Amount Amount

Lease payment debited to Statement of Profit & Loss (Net of GST)   230.37   171.01   

32  Operating Lease
(` in lakhs)

33  Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the year end     
      
The following foreign currency receivables/payables balances are not covered by derivative instruments at the Balance Sheet 
date:       
       (Currency in Lakhs) 

Particulars Currency Amount in 
foreign currency

Equivalent 
Amount in Indian 

Rupees

Amount in 
foreign currency

Equivalent 
Amount in Indian 

Rupees
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24

Trade Receivables EUR  5.76  529.07  4.39  394.75 
Trade Receivables JPY  1,143.19  649.33  762.76  419.92 
Trade Receivables GBP  -    -    0.03  2.75 
Trade Receivables USD  2.21  190.03  2.13  177.82 
Trade Payables USD  0.05  4.97  0.45  37.77 
Trade Payables JPY  62.98  35.77  94.34  51.94 
Trade Payables CAD  0.05  2.86  0.04  2.49 
Trade Payables EUR  0.00  0.04  -    -   
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34   Investments  

A)  Investments in Mutual Funds

     Quoted

    Basis of Valuation: Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower  
(` in lakhs) 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars  No of Units 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

Per Unit value 
(31st March 

2025) 
₹ 

 Market Value 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

 Book Value 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

 Market Value 
as on 31st 

March 2024 

 Book Value as 
on 31st March 

2024 

1 Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking and PSU Debt 
Fund Regular Plan Growth (Erstwhile Aditya 
Birla Sun Life Treasury Optimisier)

 33,898  358.88  121.66  99.99  112.47  99.99 

2 Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund Growth  1,127 537.333  6.05  5.07  5.62  5.07 

3 Axis Corporate Debt Fundgrowth (Erstwhile 
Axis Corporate Debt Opportunities )

 428,439  16.68  71.46  58.83  70.85  62.99 

4 DSP Bond Fund Retail Plan Growth  53,065  80.00  42.45  34.74  39.15  34.74 

5 HDFC Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan 
Normal Dividend (Erstwhile HDFC Corporate 
Bond  Normal ) - DP

 -    -    -    -    20.71  20.00 

6 HDFC Income Fund - Growth  277,601  57.26  158.96  129.99  146.47  129.99 

7 HSBC Short Duration Fund Regular Plan 
Growth (Erstwhile HSBC Short Term Bond  
Fund - Regular Plan - Growth

 466,856  25.86  120.74  100.00  111.77  100.00 

8 ICICI Prudential All Seasons Bond Fund 
Growth (Erstwhile ICICI prudential long term )

 659,610  36.22  238.91  205.08  150.00  135.08 

9 ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund 
Growth

 197  32.05  0.06  0.04  0.06  0.04 

10 ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund Growth 
Option (Erstwhile Icici Prudential Short Term )

 475,676  58.83  279.83  229.99  258.94  229.99 

11 Kotak Balanced Advantage Fund Regular 
Plan Growth

 -    -    -    -    21.89  21.22 

12 Kotak Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan 
Growth

 3,160  3,688.45  116.57  95.45  107.45  95.45 

13 Kotak Dynamic Bond Fund Regular Plan 
Growth (Erstwhile Kotak Flexi Debt  Fund)

 1,130,944  36.87  416.99  374.99  198.60  184.99 

14 NIPPON INDIA Dynamic Bond Fund Growth 
Plan Growth Option

 1,754,827  36.43  639.20  604.99  209.70  199.99 

15 NIPPON INDIA Short Term Fund - Growth 
Plan

 146,193  51.58  75.41  64.78  69.66  64.78 

16 NIPPON INDIA Ultra Short Duration Fund 
Growth (Erstwhile NIPPON INDIA Liquid 
Cash )

 2,832  3,956.46  112.03  100.00  104.50  100.00 

17 Sbi Short Term Debt Fund Regular Plan 
Growth

 273,829  31.40  85.97  68.00  79.56  68.00 

18 Sundaram Corporate Bond Fund - Regular - 
Growth

 53,515  39.30  21.03  15.00  19.41  15.00 

 -    -    -    -   

Total  2,507.32  2,186.95  1,726.80  1,567.32 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

35  Ratios
 (` in lakhs) 

36  Prior Period Expenses
 (` in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2025

Year ended  
31 March 2024

Miscellaneous Expense  0.29  0.36 
Total  0.29  0.36 

Ratios Numerator Denominator  Current Year  Previous Year % Variance  Reason for  
variance* 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current  
Liabilities

 8.63  7.76 11%

Debt-Equity Ratio Debt Equity  NA  NA 0%
Debt Service Cov-
erage Ratio

Net Operating 
Income

Debt Service  NA  NA 0%

Return on Equity 
Ratio

Net Income Shareholder's 
equity

 0.20  0.16 27% Variance is  due 
to higher net profit 
and revenues 
during the current 
year

Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Total Purchas-
es

Average of 
Trade Pay-

ables

 11.28  10.76 5%

Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Net Credit Sale Average of 
Trade  

Receivables

 3.90  3.68 6%

Net capital turnover 
ratio

Net Sales Working  
Capital

 1.29  1.23 5%

Net profit ratio Net Profit Total Sales  0.17  0.15 12%
Return on Capital 
employed

EBIT Networth + 
Total Debt + 

DTL

 0.28  0.22 28% Variance is due to 
higher Net Profit 
and Revenues

Return on invest-
ment

Gain on invest-
ments

Average 
Investment

 0.02  0.03 -50% Realised Gains 
on investment are 
lower due to lower 
Redemptions of 
Investments
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

37  Segment Reporting          

The Company is operating only in one segment, namely Language Technology Services and Consultancy Services. As a part of 
secondary reporting geographical segments are considered based on the location of customer. The Company operates in two 
geographical segments viz in India and outside India.  

The Financial Information about the Secondary Segments is as given below: 
 (` in lakhs) 

38   Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
  (` in lakhs) 

39 There are no contingent liabilities as on 31st March 2025. (FY 2023-24 : Nil)

40 (i)  The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are material 
foreseeable losses.

 (ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the  
Company. 

41 Long Term Loans and Advances

Particulars Year Ended 31 March 2025 Year Ended 31 March 2024
Geographical Segments Geographical Segments

India Outside India Total India Outside India Total
A Segment Revenue

Total Sales  283.23  5,197.31  5,480.54  162.87  3,846.24  4,009.12 
Total Revenue  283.23  5,197.31  5,480.54  162.87  3,846.24  4,009.12 

B Segment Assets
Segment Assets  236.43  1,408.82  1,645.25  255.05  1,003.93  1,258.98 
Unallocated assets  -    -    3,662.20  -    -    3,143.23 
Total Assets  236.43  1,408.82  5,307.45  255.05  1,003.93  4,402.20 

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2025

Year ended  
31 March 2024

(a) Amount required to be spent during the year  14.31  12.04 
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred  14.34  12.04 
(c) Shortfall / (Excess) at the end of the year (0.03)  0.00 
(d) Total of previous years shortfall  NA  NA 
(e) Reasons for shortfall  NA  NA 
(f) Nature of CSR activities: 

Promotion of education, contribution to incubators & ensuring environmental  
sustainability

 Non-Project  
Expense 

 Non-Project  
Expense 

(g) Details of related party transactions  NA  NA 
(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should 
be shown separately.

 NA  NA 

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the 
nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and 
Advances in the nature of loans

Promoter  -   0%

Directors  -   0%
KMPs  -   0%
Related Parties  332.09 100%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

The Company had granted unsecured long term loan to LinguaSol Private Limited (“LinguaSol”) in earlier year/s out of which  
principal amount of ₹ 3,32,08,753 is outstanding till March 31, 2025. LinguaSol repaid ₹80,00,000 towards principal and interest  
in FY 2024-25.Director of LinguaSol  has given personal guarantee as security for Loan. In light of steps taken together with  
future projection of cashflows, the Management of LinguaSol is confident of turnaround and repayment of loan given to them. 
Further,In respect of loan granted by the Company,The Schedule of repayment of Loan (inclusive of Interest at rate of 7% p.a. 
Compounding Annually) has been stipulated.

The loan along with interest shall be repaid fully by FY 2029-30.

Accordingly, the Company has not considered any adjustments including provision for impairment to the carrying value of the loan 
(including interest outstanding) as at the year end. 

42   To the best of our knowledge and belief, 

a)  No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b)  Also No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

43 Dividend Distribution made & proposed

 The Board of Director has recommended dividend of ` 2 /- per share i.e. 20% of Face Value for FY 2024-25 in the Board 
meeting held on 30.04.2025. This proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at AGM and not recognised 
as liability on reporting date.

44 Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956 during financial year 2024-25.

45 Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 2024-25.

46 There are no capital commitments as at 31st March 2025. 

47 The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a 
wilful defaulter at any time during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial 
statements are approved.       

48 There is neither creation nor modification of charge in the FY 2024-25.      

(` in lakhs) 

Name of the  
Borrower

Nature and  
purpose of Loan

Nature of security Outstanding 
amount

Default if any Reasons for 
delay

LinguaSol Private 
Limited 

Working capital 
loan

Director of the Borrower 
company ( Mr. Sunil Kulkarni) 
has given personal guarantee 
as a security.

 332.09  -    -   

Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Cash Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024:  `1.1 /- per share  
( i.e. 11% of face value )

 151.26  96.25 

Total Dividend Paid  150.32  95.66 
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For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Chairman and Executive Director Managing Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025   Date: April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date: April 30, 2025   Date: April 30, 2025

49 The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961.       

50 During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company was not party to any approved scheme which needs approval from 
competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

51 The previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ‘REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
Fidel Softech Limited
Report on the audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fidel Softech Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 
‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise 
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance  
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence  
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the  
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the  
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” 
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial  
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance 
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial  
Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide  
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sr. 
No. 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Revenue Recognition
(Refer note 20 of the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements)

The Company has various streams of revenue with multiple 
types of customer contracts characterized by a large volume 
of transactions. Revenue recognition involves certain key 
judgments relating to identification of contracts with customers, 
determination of transaction price, achievement of milestones 
and completion of contracts. 

Due to multiple types of revenue contracts with large volume 
of transactions and judgment required by the management 
this matter is considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:
• Assessed the appropriateness of the revenue 

recognition accounting policies and its compliances 
with applicable accounting standards. We selected 
samples from various types of customer contracts 
and tested the occurrence, completeness and 
measurement of those transactions by inspecting the 
underlying documents.

•       Performed testing for samples of revenue transactions 
recorded closer to the year-end by verifying underlying 
documents, to assess the accuracy of the period 
in which revenue was recognized also inspected 
relevant ledgers, purchase orders, agreements and 
other information that indicate the existence of related 
party relationships or transactions.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
• Assessed the appropriateness of accounting policies 

for unbilled revenue and their compliance with 
applicable accounting standards by testing samples 
of contracts and evaluating timing and measurement 
of revenue recognition.

• Reviewed management’s estimates and assumptions 
for recognizing unbilled revenue, including billing 
schedules and customer acceptance.

2. Transaction with Related Parties
(Refer note 30 of the accompanying Consolidated 
Financial Statements)
Revenue from transactions with related parties comprises 
around 27% (approximate) of revenues in FY 2024-25.
Receivables and loans to related parties comprise around 
20% of total assets as on 31 March 2025.
Due to large volume of transactions with related parties 
this matter is considered as a key audit matter.

• Consolidated Financial Statements of transactions 
(related parties) in accordance with the requirements 
of AS.

• Tested recoverability of loans, receivables and 
investments in related parties including management’s 
basis of considering such amounts recoverable and 
checking the repayment of such balances over the 
year. 

• Obtained and read the personal guarantee provided 
by promoters of the Company in relation to loans 
and receivables from related party namely LinguaSol 
Private Limited.

• Evaluated the design and tested operating 
effectiveness of the relevant internal financial controls 
to identify and disclose revenue of related parties and 
ensuring compliance with statutory requirements, 
assessing recoverability of the amount due from the 
related parties.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
The respective Board of Directors and Management of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by 
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors & the management of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The respective Board of Directors and the management of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the subsidiary.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Other Matters
We have not audited the financial information of the subsidiary as of 31st March 2025. The subsidiary, being located outside 
India, has prepared its financial statements and other financial information in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in its respective country. As such, these financial statements have not been audited by us or by other auditors. The 
financial information of the subsidiary, when converted into Indian Rupees (INR), reflects Total Assets of ₹76,60,889, Share 
Capital of ₹42,85,500, Total Revenue of ₹33,85,692, and a Net Profit of ₹7,25,128 as at 31st March 2025.
The Holding Company's management has carried out the conversion of these financial statements to conform with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited only the conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's 
management. Accordingly, our opinion, in so far as it relates to the financial information of the subsidiary located outside India, is 
based solely on the conversion adjustments prepared by the management and audited by us.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit,
 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  
  necessary for the purposes of our audit the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial  
  statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
 c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow  
  dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation  
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  of the consolidated financial statements.
 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under  
  Sec 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.
 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding Company as on 31 March, 2025  
  taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding Company, none of the directors of group are disqualified as on  
  31 March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and the  
  operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
  Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls  
  over financial reporting.
 g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies  
  (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the  
  explanations given to us:
  i. The Group did not have any material long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were  
   any material foreseeable losses.
  ii. The Group is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year  
   ended 31 March 2025.
  iii. With respect to clause (e) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended
   a. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been  
    advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources  
    or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  
    (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the  
    Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in  
    any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any  
    guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
   b. Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been  
    received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding  
    Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall,  
    whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner  
    whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,  
    security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
   c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the  
    circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that has caused us to believe that the representations  
    under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material  
    misstatement. 
  iv. The Group Company has declared the dividend during the year in compliance of Section 123 of the Companies  
   Act 2013. The Final dividend is paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of such dividend  
   declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of  
   dividend (Contrary to Note 43 of the Financials).
  v.       Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Holding Company has used accounting software for  
   maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording  
   audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded  
   in the software’s. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail  
   feature being tampered with. Also, the Holding Company has prepared the Audit Trail as required under the  
   rule.
2. With respect to Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms  
 of section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us,  
 there are no unfavorable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given in the reports of the Holding Company. Reporting  
 under CARO is not applicable to the Subsidiary company.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Anand Jog
Partner
Membership No.:  108177
UDIN: 25108177BMJBPP4101
Pune, April 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report to the Members of Fidel Softech Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fidel Softech Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of  
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, 
including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Anand Jog
Partner
Membership No.:  108177
UDIN: 25108177BMJBPP4101
Pune, April 30, 2025
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Particulars Note No. As at   
  31 March 2025 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Shareholder's funds   
Share capital 3  1,375.06    
Reserves and surplus 4  3,157.02      
   4,532.08     
Non-current liabilities   
Long Term Provisions 5  224.88   
   224.88     
Current liabilities   
Trade payables  7  
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises  
and small enterprises; and   11.36      
Total outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises   194.92    
Other current liabilities 8  320.55   
Short Term provisions 9  47.30      
   574.14    
TOTAL   5,331.09    
ASSETS   
Non-current assets   
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets   
    Property, Plant and Equipment 10  14.09    
    Intangible Assets 10  2.00    
Deferred tax assets (net) 11  74.53    
Non Current Investments 12  -  
Long term loans and advances 13  252.09    
Other Non Current Assets 14  108.70   
   451.41   
Current assets   
Current investments 15  2,186.95   
Trade receivables 16  1,615.24   

Cash and bank balances 17  822.65   

Short-term loans and advances 18  251.78   

Other current assets 19  3.06   

   4,879.68   
TOTAL   5,331.09

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025
(` in lakhs)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025

Summary of Material  Accouting  Policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 3-52
As this represents the first instance of consolidation, comparative figures for the previous year have not been presented.  
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Year Ended  
  31 March 2025 

Revenue   
Revenue from operations 20  5,504.30 
Other income 21  98.20 
Total Income   5,602.50

Expenses   
Cost of Services 22  1,667.35
Employee benefits expense 23  2,302.21
Finance costs 24 -
Depreciation and amortization expense 10  15.82
Other expenses 25  366.48
Total expenses   4,351.86
Profit before exceptional items and tax   1,250.64 

Exceptional items:   
Profit before tax   1,250.64 
Tax expense   
   Current tax    327.57 
   Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier years (net)   4.64 
   Deferred tax  (15.10)   
Profit for the year  933.53
Earnings per share (Face value of ₹10 each)   
Basic and diluted (`) 26  
 
Summary of significant accounting policies  2 
  
Notes to the financial statements 3-52            

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025
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Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended March 31st, 2025 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended  
 31 March 2025
 
Cash flow from operating activities: 
Profit before tax  1,250.64 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  15.82
Interest income (58.16)
Loss/(profit) on assets sold  - 
Loss / (profit) on sale of investments (3.88)
Finance cost 
 
Bad Debt ( Inclusive of Provision for Doubtful Debt) (4.33)
Sundry Balances Written back (0.71)
Excess Provision Written back  - 
Impairment Loss on Investment  - 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss  - 
Income from Dividend  - 
 (51.26)
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes  1,199.38
 
Adjustment for changes in working capital: 
Decrease/(Increase) in Long term loans and advances - 
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables (405.77)
Decrease/(Increase) in Short-term loans and advances  253.90
Decrease/(Increase) in Other current assets  32.60
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  54.55
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables   40.76
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liabilities  34.36 
Increase/(Decrease) in Short-term provisions  17.66 
Cash (used in) operations  1,227.44 
Income tax paid (309.90)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)  917.54 

Cash flow from investing activities:  
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (13.73)
Sale of Fixed Assets  - 
Interest received on bank deposits  32.20
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of investments (619.62)
Proceeds from sale/( purchase) of  Non Current Deposits  218.89 
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Deposits (49.11)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans given  46.17
Interest received on intercorporate loans  36.32 
Profit earned on sale of investments  3.88 
Income from dividend  -   
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (345.00)

(Contd.)
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Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended March 31st, 2025 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  Year ended   
 31 March 2025  

Cash flow from financing activties:  -   
Dividend Paid (151.26) 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (151.26) 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (D=A+B+C)  421.28    
  
Cash and cash equivalents:  
At the beginning of the year (refer note 17(A) for detailed breakup)  299.14    
At the end of the year (refer note 17 (A) for detailed breakup)  720.44    
  
Cash & Cash equivalents breakup:  
Cash on hand  0.81    
Balances with banks  719.62    
 
The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in AS3, 'Statement of Cash 
Flows'.   
Previous Year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Director    Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date:  April 30, 2025 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date:  April 30, 2025   Date:  April 30, 2025



98

20th Annual Report 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1.  Corporate Information

 Fidel Softech Private Limited was incorporated on 24th December 2004. It is classified as Non-govt Compnay and is registered 
at Registrar of Companies, Pune. The Group is involved in implementing innovative technology solutions & services with 
local language delivery & support. It specializes in Language engineering, Enterprise product services & cloud infrastructure 
services. Fidel Softech Private Limited was converted to Public Limited Group on April 13, 2022 thu, now named as Fidel 
Softech Limited. It was listed on SME Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE EMERGE) on 10th June 2022.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

 Basis of consolidation

 These Consolidated Statement have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in  
 India (Indian GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notted under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,  
 2013.  

  Principles of Consolidation

  The Consolidated financial statements relates to Fidel Softech Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") 
and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"). The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared on the following basis:  

  (A)   The Consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard  
   21 "Consolidated financial statements" as notified. The financial statements are posented, to the extent  
   possible, in the same format as that adopted by Holding Company for its Consolidated financial statements.

    The financial statements of subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn on same reporting date as of  
   the Holding Company. The financial statements of the Group have been consolidated on line by line basis by adding  
   together the book values of like items of assets, abilities, Income and expenses, after eliminating intra group  
   transactions and intra group balances. The financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for  
   like transaction and events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, if any to the  
   extent possible unless otherwise stated, are made in the financial statements and are presented in same manner as  
   the Holding's Consolidated financial statements. 

 (B)   Intra group balances and intra-group transactions and resulting unrealised profit have been eliminated 

 (C)   in case of foreign subsidiary, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets  
   and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation  
   is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

 (D)   The carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against the parent's portion of  
   equity in each subsidiary. 

 (E)   The Subsidiary considered in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements :

               Name of Subsidiary : Fidel Soft INC (USA) 

    a) Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

     i) The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted  
     Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under  
     Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and  
     the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956  
     Act”), as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical  
     cost convention.  

    b) Use of estimates

     The preparation  of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP  requires the Management to make  
    estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent  
    liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes that the estimates  
    used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to  
    these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods  
    in which the results are known / materialise.
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   c) (i)  Property, Plant and Equipment

     Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and impairment losses, if any.  
    The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties  
    and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable  
    expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses. 

    (ii) Depreciation

     Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the written down value method as per the useful  
    life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

       The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate.  
      In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life. 
      Property, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further  
      benefits are expected from their use and disposal. 

    d) (i)  Intangible Fixed Assets

       Intangible fixed assets that are acquired by the Group i.e. Software are measured initially at cost. After initial  
      recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if  
      any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from the  
      specific asset to which it relates.

       Product development costs are recognized as intangible fixed assets, when feasibility has been established,  
      the Group has committed technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and it is  
      probable that the asset will generate probable future economic benefits. 

      (ii)  Amortization

       Amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is  
      estimated to be significantly different from the previous estimates, the amortization period is changed  
      accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the  
      asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. 

    e) Impairment of assets

      The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment  
     if any indication of  impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable  
     amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense  
     in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in  
     use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate  
     discount factor. 

      When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier  
     accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in  
     the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and  
     Loss. 

     f) Revenue Recognition

      1.  Revenue from Localisation and Consulting projects:

       Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has  
      been approved in writing by the parties to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed to perform  
      their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized  
      upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance obligations”) to customers in an  
      amount that reflects the consideration the Group has received or expects to receive in exchange for these  
      products or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is  
      postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

       Revenue with respect to time and-material contracts is recognized over the period of time as the related  
      services are performed.
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       Revenue with respect to fixed price contracts where performance obligation is transferred over time and  
      where there is no uncertainty as to measurability or collection of consideration is recognized in accordance  
      with the completion of milestones defined in customer contracts or based on proportionate performance  
      method. In case of short term contracts, such revenue is recognised using completed contract method.

       2.  Interest Income

         Interest Income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate  
       of interest. 

     g) Foreign currency transactions

       Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on  
      the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

       Foreign currency monetary items (other than derivative contracts) of the Group, outstanding at the balance sheet  
      date are restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items of the Group are carried at historical cost.

       Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of  
      the Group are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

     h)  (i) Employee benefits

        1)  Short Term Employee Benefits

         All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified  
        as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences  
        etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the employee renders  
        the related service.

        2)  Post Employment Benefits

         (i)  Defined Contribution Plans: The Group’s state governed provident fund scheme is defined contribution  
         plans. The contribution paid/payable under the scheme is recognized during the period in which the  
         employee renders the related service 

         (ii)  Defined Benefit Plans: The employees’ have gratuity scheme in accordance with the Payment of  
         Gratuity Act, 1972 and is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation  
         under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation carried as at  
         Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of service  
         as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to  
         build up the final obligation.

          The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The  
         discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is  
         based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity  
         periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. Actuarial gain and losses are recognized  
         immediately in the profit & loss account.

       3)  Long Term Employee Benefits

        The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences is recognized in the  
       same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in note above.

     h)  (ii) Employee benefits- Stock appreciation Rights plan

        The Group has issued Stock Appreciation Rights ('SARs') to some employees vide Stock Appreciation Rights  
       Plan in April 2018

        Expenses pertaining to SARs is recognised on time-proportion basis from grant date to vesting date based  
       upon specified service contions set out in the Groups SAR plan

        The difference between grant price and the fair value of the equity shares on the reporting date is recognised  
       as expense in the profit and loss account with corresponding rise in the liability being a cash settled stock  
       appreciation rights plan

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
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        The Group re-estimates the fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting period and will also do so  
       at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period as per  
       principles stated in guidance note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India namely " Accounting  
       for Share Based Payments ( Revised 2020 ) 

        The expense and corresponding liability recognised in the financial statements is based on the share  
       valuation from a registered valuer using Discounted Cash flow technique 

     i) Taxes on Income

       Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the  
      applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

       Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the  
      accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  
      Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting  
      date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for  
      timing differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent  
      that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can  
      be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses and items relating to  
      capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence  
      that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities  
      are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Group has a  
      legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for their  
      realisability.  

   j) (i)  Operating Leases

     Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the  
    lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised in the Statement  
    of Profit and Loss over the lease term. 

    (i)  Finance Leases

     The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease rentals is capitalised as Fixed  
    Assets with corresponding amount disclosed as lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is  
    adjusted against the lease liability and the interest component is charged to Profit and Loss Statement. 

   k) Investments

    Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of the  
   acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.  
   However, that portion of long-term investments which is expected to be realized within 12 months after the  
   reporting date is also presented under ‘current investment’ as current portion of long term investments in  
   consonance with the current/non-current classification scheme of Schedule II of Act. Long-term investments are  
   valued at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined separately for each individual investment

    Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately  
   in respect of each category of investments. Any reduction in the carrying amount and any reversal of such reduction  
   is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

    l)   Provisions and contingencies

      A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an  
    outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.  
    Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on  
    the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance  
    sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.  
    Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. 
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   m)  Cash flow statement

      Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) and tax is adjusted for the effects of  
   transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash  
   flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information.

   n)   Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

      Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an  
   original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily  
   convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

   o) Earnings per Share

      Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary  
   items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

   p) Operating Cycle:

      Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their  
   realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose  
   of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. As a result, current assets comprise elements  
   that are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date and current liabilities comprise elements that  
   are due for settlement within 12 months after the reporting date. 

   q) Segment Reporting:

      The Group is operating only in one segment, namely Language Technology Services and Consultancy Services.  
   As a part of secondary reporting geographical segments are considered based on the location of customer. The  
   Group operates in two geographical segments viz in India and outside India.

      The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the Accounting Standard 17 with the following 
   additional policies for segment reporting:

      I)  Revenue have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the  
    segment

      II)  Segment assets include those directly identifiable with the respective segments based on location of assets . 
    Unallocable assets represent the assets that relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment. 
    Unallocable assets mainly comprise of tax assets, investments, loans & advances, etc.
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3. Share Capital
(` in lakhs)

3.1 Reconciliation of shares outstanding

3.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share 
in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting 
rights of an equity share holder 

a) On show of hands,every member present in person shall have one vote; 

b) On a poll,the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share capital of the company. 
 Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

 Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

 On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to whole or any part of the assets of the  
 company , whether they shall consist of the property of the same kind or not.

3.3 Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025
 Number of shares  Amount 

Authorised
Equity shares of face value `10/- each  20,000,000  2,000.00 

 20,000,000  2,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of face value of `10/- each fully paid up  13,750,560  1,375.06 
Total  13,750,560  1,375.06 

Equity share movement during five years preceeding 31st March 2025   

A)  Equity shares issued as bonus in FY2021-22       

 The Company allotted 98,49,996 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of profits transferred from  
 retained earnings amounting to `9,84,99,960, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed after taking the consent of  
 shareholders through postal ballot.        

B)  Equity shares after listing on National Stock Exchange in FY2022-23 

 The Company was listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) during FY 2022-23 and issued 36,48,000 equity shares  
 amounting to ` 3,64,80,000. 

Particulars As at  31st March 2025
 Number of shares  Amount 

 Equity Shares 
 At the commencement and at the end of the year  13,750,560  1,375.06 
 Bonus Shares Issued during the year  -    -   
 Equity Shares Issued during the year  -    -   
 At the end of the year  13,750,560  1,375.06 

 Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2025

 Number of shares  % held 
Equity Shares
Sunil Sudhakar Kulkarni   7,626,996 55.47%
Prachi Sunil Kulkarni   2,407,000 17.50%
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3.4 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

4. Reserves and surplus
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss  

At the commencement of the year    2,374.75 

Add: Profit/Loss for the year   933.53 

Less: Dividend Paid during the year  -151.26 

Balance in the statement of profit and loss   3,157.02 

Total   3,157.02 

5. Long term provisions
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Provision for employee benefits  

    Compensated absences (Refer note 31)   44.38 

    Gratuity (Refer note 31)   180.50 

Total   224.88

6. Short term Borrowings
(` in lakhs)

7. Trade payables
(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Secured 

Loan repayable on demand 

Total     -   

Particulars   As at 
  31 March 2025
Total Outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises   11.36 

Total Outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises     194.92 

Total   206.28 

Name of the promoter As at 31st March 2025
 Number of 

shares 
 % held  % change in 

shareholding 
Sunil Sudhakar Kulkarni  7,626,996 55.47% 0.20%
Prachi Sunil Kulkarni  2,407,000 17.50% 0.01%
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(` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year   11.35 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Trade Payable Aging Schedule for the Financial Year 2024-25

Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The Company had requested confirmation from all the creditors regarding their status under the Micro, Small, and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As per the replies received from the creditors, provision for interest that may be payable (in 
accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) on delayed payments to its 
micro or small suppliers is recorded.

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Statutory dues payable:   48.67 
Employee Dues Payable   145.53 
Unclaimed Dividend   1.50 
Advance from Customers   1.80 
Interest Payable for MSME Vendors   -   
Provision for other expenses   121.57 
Other Liabilities   1.48 
Total   320.55 

8. Other current liabilities
(` in lakhs)

Particulars Unbilled 
Payables

Not 
Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
as on 31st March 2025

Less than 
1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 
3 Years

Total

MSME  -    11.36  -    -    -    -    11.36 
Others  -    187.70  3.75  3.19  0.23  0.05  194.92 
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total :  -    199.06  3.75  3.19  0.23  0.05  206.28 

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Provision for employee benefits: 
    Compensated absences (Refer note 31)    12.44  
    Gratuity (Refer note 31)   34.86 
Total     47.30 

9. Short-term provisions      
` in lakhs)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
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Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Deferred Tax Asset on :  
Depreciation     5.86 
Provision for Employee benefits    68.50 
Other Disallowances    0.17 
Deferred tax (Liability)/Asset [Net]    74.53  

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025

(Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Loan to Related Party (Refer Note 30)   252.09 

Total   252.09 

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025

Secured, considered good: 

Bank deposits more than 12 months:

    Other Deposits in Bank   63.60 

Other Deposits   45.10 

Total   108.70 

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025

Non Current Investments 

   -   

The Company has complied with the number of Layers prescribed under clause (87) of Sec 2 of the Act read with The Companies 
(Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.  

11. Deferred tax Liabilities/Assets
(` in lakhs)

13. Long Term Loans and Advances
(` in lakhs)

14. Other Non Current Assets
(` in lakhs)

12. Non Current Investments
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Current Investments  
Mutual Funds (Refer Note 34)   2,186.95 
Total   2,186.95 

Particulars  As at 
  31 March 2025
Unsecured
Undisputed -
Considered good   1,615.24 
Considered doubtful   0.67 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (0.67)
Disputed -  -
Considered good   -

Considered doubtful    -   

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  -

Total   1,615.24 

15. Current Investments (` in lakhs)

16. Trade receivables
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Trade Receivable Aging Schedule for FY 2024-25 
(` in lakhs)

Trade Receivable  Unbilled 
Receivables 

Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
to 1 Year

1 - 2 
Years

2 - 3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

Total

Considered Good
Undisputed  1.40  1,181.89  246.67  29.68  63.35  64.42  29.23  1,615.24 
Disputed  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Sub Total (i)  1.40  1,181.89  246.67  29.68  63.35  64.42  29.23  1,615.24 
Considered doubtful
Undisputed  -    -    -    -    0.67  -    -    0.67 
Disputed  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Sub Total (ii)  -    -    -    -    0.67  -    -    0.67 
Less: Provision for Doubtful 
Debts

 -    -    -    -   (0.67)  -    -    -0.67 

Sub Total (iii)  -    -    -    -   (0.67)  -    -    -0.67 
Total (i+ii+iii)  1.40  1,181.89  246.67  29.68  63.35  64.42  29.23  1,615.24 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars    As at 
   31 March 2025
Cash and cash equivalents   
Cash on hand    0.81 
Balances with banks   
    -on current accounts    410.57 
    -bank deposits with remaining  maturity less than three months     307.55 
    -dividend accounts    
    1.50 
 (A) Subtotal   720.43 
Other bank balances   
    -bank deposits with remaining  maturity more than three months and 
less than twelve months.    102.22 
 (B) Subtotal   102.22 
Total (A+B)    822.65 

17. Cash and bank balances
(` in lakhs)

Details of bank balances/deposits   As at 
   31 March 2025
Bank balances available on demand/deposits with remaining maturity of 3 months or less 
included under 'Cash and cash equivalents'.    718.13 
Bank deposits due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date included under 
'Other bank balances'.    102.22 
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date included under 
‘Other non current assets’    63.60 
Total    883.95 

Particulars   As at 
   31 March 2025

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)   

Balance with Government Authorities   

b) GST Authorities    111.94 

Prepaid expenses    32.38 

Advance income tax and tax deducted at source (net of provisions)    21.56 

Loan to Related Party (Refer Note 30)    80.00 

Other Deposits    5.90 

Total    251.78  

18. Short-term loans and advances
(` in lakhs)



110

20th Annual Report 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars   As at 
   31 March 2025
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)   
Unbilled revenue    1.40 
Advances to Employees    1.03 
Advances to Suppliers    0.63 
Interest accrued on intercorporate loan    -   
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit    -   
Total    3.06 

19. Other current assets
(` in lakhs)

Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Domestic Sales & Services    317.09 

Export Sales & Services    5,187.21 

Total    5,504.30 

20. Revenue from Operations 
(` in lakhs)

Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Interest on Deposits   31.38
Interest on Loan    24.98
Short Term Capital Gain   3.04
Miscellaneous Income   36.17
Interest Received on Income Tax Refund   1.79
Dividend income   0.00
Long Term Capital Gain   0.84
Foreign Exchange Gain and Loss   0.00
Profit on Sale of Asset   0.00
Total    98.20 

21.Other income
(` in lakhs)

Particulars    Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Broadband & Other Direct Expenses    40.50 
Computer Rent    80.87 
Office Rent    149.50 
Professional Fees    1,396.48 
Total    1,667.35 

22. Cost of Services
(` in lakhs)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Interest on loan    -   
Total    -     

24. Finance Costs
(` in lakhs)

Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Salaries, allowances and bonus    2,134.74 
Salaries, allowances and bonus - Directors    72.00 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds (also refer Note 31)    61.13 
Staff welfare expenses    34.34 
Total    2,302.21 
 

23. Employee Benefit Expenses
(` in lakhs)

Particulars    Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Legal and professional fees    167.04 

Director Sitting Fees    4.50 

Travelling and Conveyance expenses    50.35 

License Fees    20.87 

Rates and taxes    8.67 

Courier Charges    0.48 

Insurance Charges    0.80 

Bank Charges    4.98 

Office Expenses    7.47 

Advertising and Marketing Expense    34.72 

Payment to auditors    9.18 

Printing and Stationery    2.42 

Bad Debts (write back)   (4.33)

Prior Period Expense (Refer Note 36)    0.29 

Foreign Exchange Gain and Loss    31.46 

CSR Expenses    14.34 

Telephone Expenses    0.78 

Miscellaneous Expenses    12.46 

Total    366.48 

 

 

25. Other expenses
(` in lakhs)
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Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
    
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders A   933.53 
Weighted average number of equity shares of face value of 
` 10 each outstanding during the year  B    13,750,560 
    
Basic and Diluted profit per equity share of face value `10 each (in INR)  (A/B)   6.79 
 

26  Earnings per share
(` in lakhs)

Particulars    Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
As auditor
Statutory audit    5.70 
Tax audit    1.20 
For Other Services    2.13 
Out of Pocket Expenses    0.15 
Total    9.18  

27  Auditors' remuneration
(` in lakhs)

Particulars    Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Sale of Services 
- Underwriter Translation    3,472.76 
- IT Services    1,714.45 
    -   
Total    5,187.21  

28  Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(` in lakhs)

Particulars   Year Ended 
   31 March 2025
Professional Fees    583.09 
Licence Fees    21.76 
Membership and Sponsorship Fees    5.41 
Travelling spend    14.78 
Marketing spend    0.65 
Others    3.32 
Total    629.01 

29  Expenses in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(` in lakhs)
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30  Related party disclosures 

a) Key management personnel and persons exercising significant influence.    
 1 Prachi Kulkarni (Managing Director)
 2 Sunil Kulkarni (Director)
 3 Mandar Inamdar (Chief Financial Officer)
 4 Sneha Ratnaparkhi (Company Secretary) 
 5 Neha Joshi (Company Secretary) till date 30th October 2023      

b)  Enterprises under Common Control    
 1 Fidel Technologies KK Japan
 2 Fidel Consulting KK Japan
 3 CoolPro International Private Limited
 4 LinguaSol Private Limited
 5 Fidel Soft INC (USA) -100% Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

c) Disclosure of related party transactions: 
(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

Sr. No. Nature of transaction Year ended  
31st March 2025

1 Fidel Consulting KK
Export of Sevices  530.26 

2 Fidel Technologies KK
Export of Services  926.23 
Reimbursement (Paid/Payable)/Receivable ( net) (474.51)

3 Linguasol Private Limited
Loan to Linguasol - Repayment receipts (80.00)
Interest on loan  24.98 
Office Rent income  4.00 

4 CoolPro International Private Limited
Domestic Professional Services  5.58 

5 Sunil Kulkarni
Directors Remuneration  36.00 
Dividend Paid  83.60 

6 Prachi Kulkarni
Directors Remuneration  36.00 
Dividend Paid  26.48 

7 Mandar Inamdar
Remuneration  47.82 

8 Sneha Ratnaparkhi
Remuneration  9.16 

9 Neha Joshi
Remuneration  -   
Total  1,175.60 
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d)  Amount due to/from related parties 
(` in lakhs)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

31 Employee Benefits      
 b) Defined contribution plans    
  The Company has recognized INR 60,11,191   (2024: INR 55,93,320) towards provident fund , INR 25050   (2024: INR 

11,076) towards labour welfare fund and INR 76,929    (2024: INR 2,16,701) towards employee state insurance in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.    

 
  Defined benefit plans 
 c) Gratuity:    
  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company was required to provide post employment benefit 

to its employees in the form of gratuity.
  The disclosures relating to actuarial assumptions in accordance with AS 15 (Revised) are provided below:   

 
   

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transaction Year ended  
31st March 2025

Amount
1 Receivables (Net)

Linguasol Private Limited
Loan to Linguasol (Receivable)  332.09 
Interest accrued on loan (Receivable)  -   
Software Professional Service, Underwriter Translation & Manpower Recruitment Services 
(Receivable)

 93.65 

Fidel Consulting KK
Export of Sevices  138.39 
Fidel Technologies KK
Export of services  482.54 
Coolpro International Pvt Ltd
Software Professional Service (Receivable)  0.09 
Prachi Kulkarni
Advance Receivable  -   

Total Receivable  1,046.76

2 Payable (Net)
Remuneration Payable to Prachi Kulkarni  2.36 
Remuneration Payable to Sunil Kulkarni  2.36 
Reimbursement Payable to Sunil Kulkarni  0.05 
Reimbursement Payable to Prachi Kulkarni  0.13 
Remuneration Payable to Sneha Ratnaparkhi  0.66 
Remuneration Payable to Mandar Inamdar  2.49 
Trade Payable to  Fidel Technologies KK Japan  35.77 
Total Payable  43.82 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

 The plan has not been funded as on the valuation date.

 Discount rate     

 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Government bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the  
 estimated terms of the obligations.          

 Salary escalation     

 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other rele  
 vant factors.          

 Methodology      

 Projected unit credit method (PUC) is used to assess the present value of obligation and the related current service cost  
 and interest cost. 

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of  Projected  Benefit Obligation   31-Mar-25

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period    157.04 

Interest Cost    11.17 

Past Service Cost   

Service cost Curtailment    40.86 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations    10.19 

Benefits Paid   (3.90)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period    215.36 

(` in lakhs)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period   31-Mar-25

Current Service Cost    40.86 

Net Interest Cost    11.17 

Actuarial  (Gains)/Losses    10.19 

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss    62.22 

Particulars   31-Mar-25

Mortality table   IALM(2012-14) ult

Discount rate   6.60%
Rate of increase in compensation levels    10%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years)    4.84  
 Retirement Age   60 years
Withdrawal Rate   
Age upto 30 years    20%
Age 31 - 40 years    20%
Age 41 - 50 years    20%
Age above 50 years   20%
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(` in lakhs)
Balance Sheet Reconciliation   31-Mar-25

Opening Net Liability   (157.04)

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss   (62.22)

Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In    -   

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out    -   

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)    3.90 

(Employer's Contribution)    -   

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet   (215.36)

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Leave Encashment:
Data Summary   31-Mar-25

Number of Employees   204

Total Salary (Leave Encashment)    73.54 

Total Salary (Leave Availment)    190.56 

Average Age   34.5

Average Past Service   3.74

Total Leave Days   3,207

(` in lakhs)
Valuation Results   31-Mar-25
Discontinuance Liability    49.93 
Projected Benefit Obligation    56.82 

(` in lakhs)
Current & Non-Current Liability   31-Mar-25

Funding Status    Unfunded 

Fund Balance    N.A. 

Current Liability **    12.44 

Non-Current Liability    44.38 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Particulars   31 March 2025 
   
Lease payment debited to Statement of Profit & Loss (Net of GST)    230.37   

32  Operating Lease
(` in lakhs)

33 Foreign currency exposures outstanding at the year end     
      
 The following foreign currency receivables/payables balances are not covered by derivative instruments at the Balance  
 Sheet date:      
      (` in lakhs)

Particulars Currency Amount in 
foreign currency

Equivalent 
Amount in Indian 

Rupees
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-25

Trade Receivables EUR  5.76  529.07 
Trade Receivables JPY  1,143.19  649.33 
Trade Receivables GBP  -    -   
Trade Receivables USD  2.21  190.03 
Trade Payables USD  0.05  4.97 
Trade Payables JPY  62.98  35.77 
Trade Payables CAD  0.05  2.86 
Trade Payables EUR  0.00  0.04 

Valuation Assumptions   31-Mar-25

(i)    Financial Assumptions   
Salary Escalation Rate   
For first year   00.00% p.a.
For subsequent years   10.00% p.a.
 
Discount Rate   6.60% p.a.  
   (Indicative G. Bonds  
   referenced on  
   31-03-2025)
(ii)   Demographic Assumptions   
Mortality Rate   Indian Assured Lives  
   Mortality (2012-14)  
   Ultimate
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34   Investments  

A)    Investments in Mutual Funds

        Quoted

        Basis of Valuation: Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower
(` in lakhs) 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars  No of Units 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

Per Unit value 
(31st March 

2025) 
₹ 

 Market Value 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

 Book Value 
as on 31st 

March 2025 

1 Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking and PSU Debt Fund Regular Plan Growth (Erstwhile 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Treasury Optimisier)

 33,898  358.88  121.66  99.99 

2 Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund Growth  1,127 537.333  6.05  5.07 

3 Axis Corporate Debt Fundgrowth (Erstwhile Axis Corporate Debt Opportunities )  428,439  16.68  71.46  58.83 

4 DSP Bond Fund Retail Plan Growth  53,065  80.00  42.45  34.74 

5 HDFC Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan Normal Dividend (Erstwhile HDFC 
Corporate Bond  Normal ) - DP

 -    -    -    -   

6 HDFC Income Fund - Growth  277,601  57.26  158.96  129.99 

7 HSBC Short Duration Fund Regular Plan Growth (Erstwhile HSBC Short Term 
Bond  
Fund - Regular Plan - Growth

 466,856  25.86  120.74  100.00 

8 ICICI Prudential All Seasons Bond Fund Growth (Erstwhile ICICI prudential long 
term )

 659,610  36.22  238.91  205.08 

9 ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund Growth  197  32.05  0.06  0.04 

10 ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund Growth Option (Erstwhile Icici Prudential Short 
Term )

 475,676  58.83  279.83  229.99 

11 Kotak Balanced Advantage Fund Regular Plan Growth  -    -    -    -   

12 Kotak Corporate Bond Fund Regular Plan Growth  3,160  3,688.45  116.57  95.45 

13 Kotak Dynamic Bond Fund Regular Plan Growth (Erstwhile Kotak Flexi Debt  
Fund)

 1,130,944  36.87  416.99  374.99 

14 NIPPON INDIA Dynamic Bond Fund Growth Plan Growth Option  1,754,827  36.43  639.20  604.99 

15 NIPPON INDIA Short Term Fund - Growth Plan  146,193  51.58  75.41  64.78 

16 NIPPON INDIA Ultra Short Duration Fund Growth (Erstwhile NIPPON INDIA Liquid 
Cash )

 2,832  3,956.46  112.03  100.00 

17 Sbi Short Term Debt Fund Regular Plan Growth  273,829  31.40  85.97  68.00 

18 Sundaram Corporate Bond Fund - Regular - Growth  53,515  39.30  21.03  15.00 

Total  2,507.32  2,186.95 
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35  Ratios
 (` in lakhs) 

36  Prior Period Expenses
 (` in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2025

Miscellaneous Expense  0.29 
Total  0.29 

Ratios Numerator Denominator  Current Year  Previous Year % Variance  Reason for  
variance* 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current 
Liabilities

 8.50  7.76 10%

Debt-Equity Ratio Debt Equity  NA  NA 0%
Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Net Operating 
Income

Debt Service  NA  NA 0%

Return on Equity 
Ratio

Net Income Shareholder's 
equity

 0.21  0.16 27% Variance is  due 
to higher net profit 
and revenues 
during the current 
year

Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Total 
Purchases

Average 
of Trade 
Payables

 10.92  10.76 2%

Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Net Credit Sale Average 
of Trade 

Receivables

 3.90  3.68 6%

Net capital turnover 
ratio

Net Sales Working 
Capital

 1.28  1.23 4%

Net profit ratio Net Profit Total Sales  0.17  0.15 12%
Return on Capital 
employed

EBIT Networth + 
Total Debt + 

DTL

 0.28  0.22 29% Variance is due to 
higher Net Profit 
and Revenues

Return on 
investment.

Gain on 
investments

Average 
Investment

 0.02  0.03 -50% Realised Gains 
on investment are 
lower due to lower 
Redemptions of 
Investments
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37 Segment Reporting          

The Company is operating only in one segment, namely Language Technology Services and Consultancy Services. As a part of 
secondary reporting geographical segments are considered based on the location of customer. The Company operates in two 
geographical segments viz in India and outside India.   

The Financial Information about the Secondary Segments is as given below:
 (` in lakhs) 

38  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
  (` in lakhs) 

39 There are no contingent liabilities as on 31st March 2025       

40 (i)   The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are material foreseeable 
losses.

    (ii)   There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Group.        

41 Long Term Loans and Advances

Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2025

(a) Amount required to be spent during the year  14.31 
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred  14.34 
(c) Shortfall / (Excess) at the end of the year (0.03)
(d) Total of previous years shortfall  NA 
(e) Reasons for shortfall  NA 
(f) Nature of CSR activities: 

Promotion of education, contribution to incubators & ensuring environmental  
sustainability

 Non-Project  
Expense 

(g) Details of related party transactions  NA 
(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obliga-

tion, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately.
 NA 

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the 
nature of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and 
Advances in the nature of loans

Promoter  -   0%

Directors  -   0%
KMPs  -   0%

Related Parties  33,208,753 100%

Particulars Year Ended 31 March 2025
Geographical Segments

India Outside 
India

Total

A Segment Revenue
Total Sales  317.09  5,187.21  5,504.30 
Total Revenue  317.09  5,187.21  5,504.30 

B Segment Assets
Segment Assets  236.43  1,408.82  1,645.25 
Unallocated assets  -    -    3,685.84 
Total Assets  236.43  1,408.82  5,331.09 
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 The Group had granted unsecured long term loan to LinguaSol Private Limited (“LinguaSol”) in earlier year/s out of which  
principal amount of `3,32,08,753 is outstanding till March 31, 2025.LinguaSol repaid `80,00,000 towards principal and 
interest in FY 2024-25.

 Director of LinguaSol  has given personal guarantee as security for Loan. In light of steps taken together with future 
projection of cashflows, the Management of LinguaSol is confident of turnaround and repayment of loan given to them. 
Further,In respect of loan granted by the Group,The Schedule of repayment of Loan (inclusive of Interest at rate of 7% p.a. 
Compounding Annually) has been stipulated.

 The loan along with interest shall be repaid fully by FY 2029-30. 

 Accordingly, the Group has not considered any adjustments including provision for impairment to the carrying value of the 
loan (including interest outstanding) as at the year end.       

42 To the best of our knowledge and belief, 

 a)  No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any  
 other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  
 (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,  
 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of  
 the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

 b)  Also No funds have been received by the Group from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding  
 Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or  
 indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding  
 party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

43 Dividend Distribution made & proposed

 The Board of Director has recommended dividend of ` 2/- per share i.e. 20% of Face Value for FY 2024-25 in the Board 
meeting held on 30.04.2025. This proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at AGM & not recognised as 
liability on reporting date.

44 Disclosure in terms of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

(` in lakhs) 

Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2025

Cash Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024:  `1.1 /- per share  
( i.e. 11% of face value )

 151.26 

Total Dividend Paid  150.32 

Name of the  
Borrower

Nature and  
purpose of Loan

Nature of security Outstanding 
amount

Default if 
any

Reasons for 
delay

LinguaSol Private 
Limited 

Working capital 
loan

Director of the Borrower 
company ( Mr. Sunil Kulkarni) 
has given personal guarantee 
as a security.

 332.09  -    -   
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For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fidel Softech Limited
FRN - 105215W/ W100057  CIN: L72200PN2004PLC020061

Anand Jog Sunil Kulkarni   Prachi Kulkarni 
Partner Chairman and Executive Director Managing Director 
Membership No.: 108177 DIN: 00752937   DIN: 03618459 
Place: Pune Place: Pune   Place: Pune 
Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025   Date: April 30, 2025 
    
 Mandar Inamdar   Sneha Ratnaparkhi 
 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
      ICSI M.No. : A42657 
 Place: Pune   Place: Pune
 Date: April 30, 2025   Date: April 30, 2025

45 Group has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956 during financial year 2024-25.

46 Group  has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 2024-25.  

47 There are no capital commitments as at 31st March 2025.        

48 The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a wilful defaulter 
at any time during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are 
approved.       

49 There is neither creation nor modification of charge in the FY 2024-25.      

50 The Group  has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961.       

51 During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group was not party to any approved scheme which needs approval from 
competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

52 The previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the current year 
presentation.    

Name of the entity in 
the Group

Net Asset i.e. total assets minus total liabilities  Share in profit or loss 
 As a % of consolidated 

net assets 
 Amount in Lakhs  As a % of consoli-

dated profit 
 Amount in Lakhs 

Parent Net Asset i.e. total assets minus total liabilities
Fidel Softech Limited 99.84%  4,524.84 99.23%  926.29 
Subsidiary
US
Fidel Soft INC USA 1.10%  50.08 0.78%  7.24 
Less: Elimination -0.95%  -42.84 
Total 100.00%  4,532.08 100.00%  933.53 
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